
Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Monday - January 7, 2019

2:00 PM

MHSC Classrooms 1, 2 & 3



B. Our Mission and Vision  Marty Kelsey

A. Pledge of Allegiance  Richard
Mathey

I. Call to Order  Richard
Mathey

Minutes for December 5 2018.docx - Page 6
 

  

III. Minutes For Approval Richard
Mathey

1. Credentialing Policy  Richard
Mathey

2. Investment Policy  Marty Kelsey

Credentialing Policy.pdf - Page 14
 

  

A. For Board Approval   

1. Drug and Alcohol Policy for Staff (Lined Through)   

2. Drug and Alcohol Policy for Employed and Credentialed
Physicians (Lined Through)

  

3. Employee Grievance Procedure and Conflict/Dispute
(Lined Through)

  

B. Outstanding - Not Ready for Board Consideration (Placed on
the agenda as a reminder of uncompleted business)

  

Investment Policy-Board.pdf - Page 20
 

  

V. Old Business  Richard
Mathey

1. Conflict Resolution Policy   

A. (From the Human Resources Committee) For Review Ed Tardoni

2. Drug and Alcohol Free Workplace Policy   

VI. New Business  Richard
Mathey

Mission Vision Values Strategies March 2018.pdf - Page 5
 

  

II. Agenda For Approval Richard
Mathey

Minutes for December 5 2018 Special Workshop Meeting.docx - Page
12
 

  

IV. Community Communication  Richard
Mathey

4. Approval of Credentialing Criteria (Delineation of
Privileges) (Lined Through)

  

B. Board Meetings and Workshops For Discussion Richard
Mathey

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene
Richardson,
Chief
Executive

Meeting Book - Monday - January 7, 2019 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting

Board Meeting Agenda

Page 2 of 173



Quality Committee Summary Report- Dashboard December
2018.docx - Page 24
 

  

A. Quality Committee  Barbara
Sowada

HR Chair report December meeting Tardoni.docx - Page 29
 

  

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni

1. Capital Expenditure For Approval Marty Kelsey

Narrative to November 2018 Financial Statement.pdf - Page
56
 

  

2. Narratives  Tami Love,
Chief
Financial
Officer

3. Investment Recommendation For Approval Tami Love

4. Bad Debt For Approval Ron Cheese,
Patient
Financial
Services
Director

Capital Expenditure Request FY19 - 24 Central Plant
Upgrade.pdf - Page 47
 

  

Provider Clinic November 2018.pdf - Page 58
 

  

Open Bid Investment Summary Report November 30
2018.pdf - Page 59
 

  

DECEMBER POTENTIAL BAD DEBT TO THE BOARD.pdf -
Page 60
 

  

C. Finance and Audit Committee  Marty Kelsey

December Building and Grounds Report Tardoni.docx - Page 143
 

  

Tardoni Scope Creek Memo.pdf - Page 144
 

  

D. Building & Grounds Committee  Ed Tardoni

G. Joint Conference Committee  Richard
Mathey

12.19.18 Quality Minutes.doc - Page 26
 

  

HR Committee Packet 12-17-18 w-updated policies.pdf - Page 30
 

  

meeting book - december 2018 finance & audit committee .pdf -
Page 61
 

  

meeting book - wednesday - december 19, 2018 building &
grounds committee meeting.pdf - Page 146
 

  

E. Foundation Board  Taylor Jones

F. Compliance Committee  Barbara
Sowada

VIII. Committee Reports  Richard
Mathey

A. Contract Approved By CEO Since Last Board Meeting For Your Information Suzan
Campbell,
Chief Legal

IX. Contract Review  Richard
Mathey

Officer

Joint Conference Committee Meeting 12182018 draft.docx - Page
150
 

  

Page 3 of 173



1. Stago   

Executive/General
Counsel

Genetic Counselor Delineation of Privileges revised
December 2018.docx - Page 154
 

  

1. Providers   

A. Approval of Privileges
Confidential information available for review in the Board Portal.

  

B. Standardizing Credentials Forms   

Podiatry Privileges revised 12 2018.doc - Page 157
 

  

XIII. Credentials For Approval Richard
Mathey

Stago Compact Max Check List.pdf - Page 152
 

  

X. Medical Staff Report
No report included in the meeting packet.

 Dr. Lawrence
Lauridsen,
Medical Staff
President

XI. Good of the Order  Richard
Mathey

XII. Executive Session
(W.S. 16-4-405 (a)(ii), (iii), (ix), (xi))

 Richard
Mathey

Delineation of Privilege Information for the Board Packet.pdf -
Page 160
 

  

XIV. Adjourn  Richard
Mathey

Page 4 of 173



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

Page 5 of 173



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

December 5, 2018 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

December 5, 2018, at 2:00 PM with Mr. Richard Mathey, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, 

Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present: Dr. David Dansie, Medical Staff President; Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief 

Executive Officer; Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater County Board of County Commissioners Liaison; 

and Mr. Jim Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Mr. Mathey led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. Dr. Sowada read aloud the mission and 

vision statements.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the November 7, 2018, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. The motion to approve the minutes 

of the November 27, 2018, special meeting as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. 

Jones. Mr. Tardoni and Mr. Mathey noted they were not in attendance at the meeting. Motion 

carried. 

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Mr. Ron Cheese thanked Commissioner Kolb for all of the time he spent and all he did to get the 

Hospital through the time we went through. Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. Kolb for everything he 

has done and for his support of the Hospital. She presented him with a small token of appreciation 

on behalf of the Hospital and the Board of Trustees. Mr. Kolb expressed appreciation to everyone 

including the Board and said he appreciated the opportunity to serve. Mr. Mathey thanked Mr. 

Kolb and said he was consistently well-informed and did his homework. He said Mr. Kolb has 

done a tremendous service to the County and the Hospital.  

 

Page 6 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the December 5, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

Ms. Richardson thanked Dr. Dansie for his years of service as Chief of Staff. She said it has been 

a pleasure to work with him. Dr. Dansie has provided light, courage, strength and hope. She 

thanked him for his leadership and all he has done for us and presented him with gift on behalf of 

the Hospital and Board. Mr. Mathey recognized Dr. Dansie and thanked him. He said Dr. Dansie’s 

leadership set the tone for the whole medical staff. Mr. Tardoni shared a personal experience and 

expressed his appreciation for Dr. Dansie.  

 

Ms. Robin Snowberger reported the Lab went live with molecular testing with the bio fire 

November 19. She said we can produce results in hours vs. days and the equipment is already 

making a different. Mr. Mathey noted the equipment was purchased by the Foundation.  

 

Mr. Mathey said after the November meeting he personally received communication from Bank 

of the West addressed to the full Board. He forwarded the information to the rest of the Board and 

included the information with the supplemental agenda for the current meeting.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into Executive Session for the reasons noted on the agenda was made by Mr. 

Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The Board of Trustees reconvened into Regular Session at 4:14 PM.  

 

The motion to authorize the CEO to extend a physician contract on behalf of the Hospital as 

presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

CREDENTIALS 

 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve the November 13, 2018, Credentials Committee Recommendations as 

follows for appointment to the Medical Staff was made by Mr. Jones; second by Dr. Sowada. 

Motion carried. 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Banu Symington, Hematology/Oncology  

2. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Debra Anderson, Pediatrics 

3. Initial Appointment to AHP Staff (1 year) 

 Jocelyn Palinek, Nurse Practitioner/Family Practice 

4. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Jad Wakim, Hematology/Oncology 

 Dr. Jonathan Roddy, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Brigham Smith, Cardiology (U of U) 

Page 7 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the December 5, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

 Dr. Lee Shan Chung, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Adam de Havenon, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Jennifer Majersik, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Holly Ledyard, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Richard Barton, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. John McArthur, Tele Radiology (VRAD) 

 Dr. Karen Caldemeyer, Tele Radiology (VRAD) 

 Dr. John Bodenhamer, Tele Radiology (VRAD) 

6. Approval of Credentialing Policy 

 

Mr. Phillips left the meeting. 

 

Approval of Credentialing Policy 

 

Ms. Kerry Downs, Medical Staff Services Manager, said the information is in the packet for review 

and a request will be made for approval at the following regular meeting.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Dansie expressed gratitude to the Board, Ms. Richardson, members present, and everyone who 

has made his opportunity to serve as Medical Staff President as rewarding as it has been. He said 

it was a very positive experience and expressed appreciation for the gift. Dr. Dansie announced 

the new officers elected by the Medical Staff: 

 

President: Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen 

Vice President: Dr. Wallace Curry 

Secretary/Treasurer: Dr. Israel Stewart 

 

Dr. Dansie said bylaws were recommended for approval at the last Medical Executive Committee 

meeting. A Joint Conference Committee meeting is scheduled December 18.  

 

Mr. Mathey thanked Dr. Dansie for his final report. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

For Board Approval 

 

Corporate Compliance Plan 

 

The motion to remove the approval to table the request at the November meeting was made by Mr. 

Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  The motion to approve the plan as presented was 

made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. 

 

  

Page 8 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the December 5, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Board Procedure: Board Agenda Draft 

 

The motion to approve the revised version of the agenda procedure was made by Dr. Sowada; 

second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

Board Procedure: E-mail Communication Draft 

 

Mr. Mathey said action died for lack of a motion.  

 

Outstanding – Not Ready For Board Consideration 

 

Mr. Tardoni said he would provide an update during the committee reports.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

From the Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Investment Policy 

 

Mr. Mathey said this will appear for action in January. Mr. Kelsey complemented staff for their 

hard work on the policy. He said it largely resembles the County’s with some changes due to being 

a Hospital.   

 

Workshop on FY20 Budget 

 

Mr. Mathey referenced a recommendation made last month regarding eliminating some of the 

monthly committee meetings in order to have some workshops. Ms. Richardson recommended a 

budget workshop on Thursday, January 31, at 4:00 PM.  

 

January 2019 Meeting Date 

 

Mr. Mathey said it was his desire to move the January 2 meeting to the following week and asked 

for a preference on January 7, 8, or 9. The Board agreed to move the meeting to Monday, January 

7 at 2:00 PM. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson said she is planning to give quarterly updates on the strategic plan. She said 

Planetree representatives would be onsite the following week. They provide resources around a 

person-centered culture. Information sessions and focus group meetings will be held. Ms. Faith 

Jones has been providing LEAN training. We hope to have a report from her and Dr. Kristy 

Nielson, Chief Nursing Officer, when the pilot group sessions are complete. Community Needs 

Assessment work has kicked off. We continue work on initiatives in the workplace experience 

area and we continue work to improve our financial position. Ms. Richardson reported on 

physician recruitment efforts. Town Halls will be offered in January. The November 30 Christmas 

event was great and the Hospital was awarded second place in the Rock Springs Lighted Parade. 

Page 9 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the December 5, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

Holiday lunches and dinners will be offered to staff December 6. Ms. Richardson invited the 

Trustees to attend. She wished everyone a very merry Christmas and a happy, healthy new year.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Dr. Sowada reported we continue to work on building capacity. Dr. Cielette Karn, Pathology, gave 

a great presentation on Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE) in November. Ms. 

Amanda Molski, Quality Director, and staff put together a comprehensive dashboard for review.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni reviewed the update he provided in the meeting packet. He said the committee 

considered changes to the grievance and conflict resolution policy. They are in the process of 

making changes and discovered a conflict so they are bringing it back to the committee again. Mr. 

Tardoni said they continue working on the drug and alcohol policy. The next meeting is scheduled 

December 17.    

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Narratives: Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, reviewed the narrative highlights included in 

the meeting packet. She said we hope to break-even for revenue in November. Mr. Kelsey noted 

reductions in revenue has been creeping up.  

 

Investment Recommendation: The motion to approve the investment recommendation of 

$16,603,099.74 as requested was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

  

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt for $985,080.88 as presented by Mr. 

Ron Cheese, Patient Financial Services Director, was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried. 

 

Building and Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni reviewed his comments included in the meeting packet. Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities 

Director, reviewed the highlights from his report included in the Finance and Audit Committee 

meeting packet. He said the phasing of the central plant discussion was held earlier in the day 

during a special workshop meeting.   

 

Foundation Board Committee 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, said she brought papers to distribute regarding the 

BRAVO team member recognition program. She said Ms. Amber Fisk and Ms. Ruthann Wolfe in 

Human Resources are spearheading the program. Dr. Sowada shared reservations about having the 

Board select the employee of the month. Mr. Kelsey shared a similar opinion. He said he thinks 

an award means more if it comes from or is selected by peers. Ms. Marshall said she is not 

Page 10 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the December 5, 2018 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

technically on the committee so she is not the best one to answer questions about it. Mr. Mathey 

said the Board will not take action on this at this time. Ms. Marshall said the Christmas event 

November 30 far exceeded anything we planned or expected. She said it was a group effort. Ms. 

Marshall said she spent the day with four of the Foundation Board members at a workshop and 

offered to forward important information to the Trustees. Ms. Marshall distributed February 2 Red 

Tie Gala invitations. She said we have 35 tables confirmed and will cap attendance at 500. Ms. 

Marshall welcomes help with sponsors and recruiting help. She said we are trending well for 

attendees and have confirmed some key volunteers.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada reported this was covered earlier in the meeting. 

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 
 

Contract Consent Agenda 
 

Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive and General Counsel, asked for any questions on the 

contract included in the meeting packet. The motion to authorize the CEO to sign the agreement 

as presented on behalf of MHSC was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.   

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Jones thanked Mr. Kolb for everything he has done for the Hospital. He said it is critical to 

have a strong liaison and not just someone who shows up. Mr. Kolb helped us obtain additional 

funds for the retaining wall and central plant. He thanked Mr. Kolb for taking some pretty serious 

stands.  

 

Ms. Deb Sutton, PR and Marketing Director, said she is working with the County to set up an open 

meetings workshop. They want to include parliamentary procedure and are looking at a date in 

March.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the motion was made, second and carried to adjourn.   

 

        

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

Page 11 of 173



 

 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

December 5, 2018 

 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in special session on 

December 5, 2018, at 11:00 AM with Mr. Richard Mathey, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order and announced a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. 

Ed Tardoni.  

 

Officially present:  Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director; Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater Board of 

County Commissioners; Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer; Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief 

Executive Officer; and Mr. Jake Blevins and Mr. Todd Spacek, ST&B Engineering. 

 

WELCOME AND PURPOSE 

 

Mr. Kelsey welcomed everyone. Mr. Horan introduced Mr. Blevins and Mr. Spacek. Mr. Kelsey 

said at the last Finance and Audit Committee meeting, the group talked about an agenda item that 

was going to be brought before the Board for consideration. The committee discussed the 

significant additional cost if we piecemealed the central plant work over two or three years instead 

of doing it at one time. Commissioner Kolb suggested moving the work forward. The Board of 

County Commissioners (BOCC) met December 4 and reviewed the information provided. Mr. 

Kelsey said the Finance and Audit Committee thought it would be beneficial to review the 

information and better-understand from the experts in this area. Ms. Richardson said Mr. Kolb 

called her and she, Ms. Love, and Mr. Horan presented the central plant project to the BOCC and 

asked them to consider providing assistance. She said they are willing to provide $1M if we match 

those funds. She said the BOCC did not vote on it but were willing to move forward at their next 

meeting with a budget amendment. Ms. Richardson said we are very appreciative and agreed we 

want to fully understand the project and the priorities. Mr. Tardoni said the question of whether 

we do it now or later is a question of risk, the potential or exposure to failure. He said he thinks 

the BOCC recognize that. He said the Hospital had looked at phasing because of the money 

involved.  

 

CENTRAL PLANT UPGRADE PROJECT 

 

Mr. Blevins and Mr. Spacek reviewed their history with MHSC and reviewed the details of the 

project plans. Mr. Spacek said the presentation they brought was essentially the one given to the 

Building and Grounds Committee recently. He said it seems a summary paper is what is needed 

by the BOCC. Following lengthy discussion, Mr. Spacek suggested they re-cost it. He said he 

thinks $2M is still a good number. Mr. Jones asked for clarification on if we are building for more 

than we need today. He said we are not building for the future and we are putting in what we need 

now even though there is potential for the future. Mr. Kolb said it sounds like it is total redundancy 

Page 12 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the December 5, 2018 Board of Trustees Special Workshop Meeting 

Page 2 

for liability. Mr. Blevins and Mr. Spacek said they will go back and review their numbers and 

provide the information to Mr. Horan by the deadline needed by the BOCC. Mr. Kelsey said we 

need a written, concise summary statement to present to the BOCC. Mr. Kolb said the Board must 

show taxpayers why this is a valid expense. Mr. Kelsey thanked Mr. Blevins and Mr. Spacek for 

attending. Mr. Kolb reviewed six penny cent funds and timing.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 1:23 PM. 

 

 

 

       ________________________________ 

Mr. Richard Mathey, President 

Attest: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13 of 173



Page 14 of 173



Page 15 of 173



Page 16 of 173



Page 17 of 173



Page 18 of 173



Page 19 of 173



Page 20 of 173



Page 21 of 173



Page 22 of 173



Page 23 of 173



Quality Committee Summary Report- MHSC Quality Dashboard 
December 2018 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

MHSC Quality Dashboard 

Background. The MHSC Quality Dashboard is a monthly snapshot of measures that reflect the quality 

and safety of patient care at MHSC. Metrics include internal goals and opportunities for improvement 

that have been identified by teams and outlined in the annual Quality Assessment Performance 

Improvement Plan (QAPI). Other metrics are defined, prioritized and benchmarked by the Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), The Joint Commission (TJC) and/or MIDAS comparative 

databases. Measures may be added, changed or re-evaluated annually, at a minimum, to best represent 

outcomes and goals. The data is used by the hospital to identify improvement opportunities, evaluate 

trends, and assist in moving MSHC towards strategic initiatives. Data is represented monthly, with the 

most recent, completed data. There is a lag in completion of data as teams have to manually abstract 

and collect the information. While a lag in the data exists on the dashboard, internal teams are still 

monitoring and responding to deviations from expected as occurrences arise in real time. The current 

dashboard reflects elements of CMS’ Star Rating program as part of the strategic plan.  

 

CMS Star Ratings- Overall Hospital 

Mortality. No deviations from expected. Mortality rates similar to comparison benchmarks.  

 

Readmission. No deviations from expected. Readmission rates similar to comparison benchmarks. 

 

Safety of Care. Refer to safety report.  

 

Infection prevention. Data not available for October.      

 

Efficient Use of Medical Imaging. Current focused efforts on improving OP-10, abdomen CT, rate of 

double scans with and without contrast. October performance at 7.17%. MHSC goal of 7.8%.  Cases in 

which double scans are being performed are sent to Dr. Matti and Tracie Soller, Director of Radiology, 

for review. Dr. Matti has developed a radiology newsletter to educate and inform area physicians on the 

importance of reducing unnecessary double scans for abdomen CT tests.  

 

Timeliness of Care. Median time for ED arrival to ED departure for admitted patients was 286 minutes in 

October, up from 239.5 minutes in September. Current goal is to be under 250 minutes.  Average 

composite time for past six months at 301 minutes. Median time from admit decision time to departure 

was 135 minutes in October, up from 124.5 minutes in September. MHSC goal is 75 minutes. Lean 

process improvement education started November 6, 2018. Emergency Department and Medical-

Surgical Department team in education and applying new techniques to individual processes within the 

throughput process.   

 

Median time from ED arrival to ED departure for discharged patients at 159 minutes, up from 133 

minutes in September. MHSC goal is 100 minutes.  

 

Median time to ECG at 29 minutes for October, up from 13 minutes in September. MHSC goal is 7 

minutes or less.  Individual cases have been reviewed by Director of Cardiopulmonary Services and 

opportunities identified. November data shows a decrease to 10 minutes. No trend identified from 29 

minutes in October. Six month composite at 11 minutes.  

Page 24 of 173



Quality Committee Summary Report- MHSC Quality Dashboard 
December 2018 

QUALITY-CONFIDENTIAL 

Effectiveness of Care. No deviations from expected.   

 

QUALITY ASSESSMENT PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT (QAPI) 

Opportunities for improvement.  

Sepsis bundle performance at 25% in October, down from 37.5% in September. Downward trend 

identified. Areas of opportunity identified in appropriate fluid volumes and cultures after antibiotics. 

Sepsis work team initiated to address barriers and opportunities. Sepsis bundle as part of Star Rating in 

February 2019.   

 

Labor induction rate at 40% for October.  MHSC goal is under 17%.  Lean process being applied.  

 

 

Patient Experience. Refer to HCAHPS report.   

 

 

 

Page 25 of 173



 

  Page 1 of 3 

Confidential   1/4/2019 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

December 19, 2018 

 
  

Present:  Dr. Banu Symington, Dr. Kristy Nielson, Leslie Taylor, Tami Love, Suzan Campbell, Kari 

Quickenden, Clayton Radakovich, Dr. Barbara Sowada, Irene Richardson, Amanda 

Molski 

 

Guest: Richard Mathey 

 

Absent/Excused:  Dr. Cielette Karn, Marty Kelsey  

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada   

 

 

Housekeeping 

Dr. Sowada congratulated Ms. Richardson, Ms. Love, Mr. Mathey, Mr. Tardoni and Mr. Mathey 

for speaking with the County Commissioners and “bringing home” $1million dollars. 

 

Minutes and Agenda 

The November 14, 2018 Minutes and today’s Agenda were presented for approval. Motion to 

approve by Ms. Richardson, seconded by Ms. Taylor. Motion approved. 

 

Governance Quality Engagement Diagnostic 

The group divided into smaller groups and each chose a “question” to assess and move 

forward with. Questions 10, 12 & 15, 27, 34 & 61, 51 were the points we wanted to see as focuses. 

Group decided to allot 10 minutes each month to review “Could it happen here?”. Also add 

time for “patient stories” and be able to circle back to the meeting with follow up, perhaps take 

one meeting quarterly and dedicate to LEAN project storyboard presentation – March. 

 

Dr. Sowada questioned looking at consumer centric efforts in the future. Ms. Richardson and Ms. 

Taylor spoke to Freesia through the Clinics which will help with scheduling, payment and 

paperwork. 

 

Old Business 

Root Cause Analysis (RCA) 10/18 – shared with Board last month, determined not a sentinel 

event. 

 

Continuing to call back patient, offering assistance finding PCP. Ms. Taylor requested and 

seconded by both Ms. Love and Dr. Sowada, that Mr. Radakovich again run stats on number of 

patients without PCPs for review. 

 

Medical Imaging access and core measures – QAPI has been working with Dr. Matti with 

concurrent review, for provider follow up. LEAN training has taught us to pick smaller pieces to fix 

and the access group will restart after the first of the year. 

 

New Business 

TJC was here this week, but without an Engineer. Engineer will be here January 4th. This is an 

Intercycle Monitoring event. Titration orders continue to be problematic. Seclusion and Restraint 

 

Page 26 of 173



 

  Page 2 of 3 

Confidential   1/4/2019 

rooms approved, but face-to-face are not always being documented. Discharge education 

could be more “layman terms”. Moderate Sedation did well, with one minor site marking 

exception. High level disinfection had several points requiring fixes – large amount of small stuff. 

Documentation of quality control of equipment was found to be lacking in areas. 

 

All points are ongoing projects, with the exception of Discharge Education, which will be now. 

We have 30 days from January 4, 2019 to file with plan of corrections. 

 

We were able to talk to and ask questions of the Surveyors, it was a very “educational” survey. 

The surveyor was very complimentary to the staff. We should have our report in January. 

 

Dr. Nielson announced that the Dialysis survey occurred, 2 ½ years late due to staffing issues on 

the state level. One finding was use of a blanket, for warming patients that covered the infusion 

site. Second was monitoring of Phoenix equipment and third was good faith follow up of dialysis 

patient deaths, whether they occurred here or elsewhere. Accreditation was granted. 

 

Dr. Sowada noted that we now have 36 dialysis patients, and what an increase and 

improvement that is for the community. 

 

Mr. Radakovich noted the floor had a suicide attempt that was thwarted by staff. Staff was alert 

and reactive to patient. Dr. Symington questioned follow up for staff and Mr. Radakovich stated 

this case didn’t require follow up, but looking at secondary victim needs to be reviewed. 

 

Ms. Molski reported unofficially we have achieved our 4-star rating! It won’t be official until  

 

Consent Agenda - Hospital 

Dr. Sowada noted Labor induction rates are up. Ms. Molski stated that Kara Jackson has taken 

this on as a LEAN project to look as scheduling. Dr. Quickenden looked up a FAQs sheet from 

Intermountain that could be beneficial to patient and families. 

 

Consent Agenda – Patient Experience 

Dr. Sowada had a question on Patient Experience CHCAPS, the numbers appear to show 

disconnect in after discharge care, but in fact it is looking at the information given on discharge 

for after discharge and whether the patient understood. 

 

Ms. Molski noted that were are seeing more “green” and “yellow”, which is a good trend. 

 

Ms. Taylor stated she was working with Rich Tyler, IT Director on a HIPAA compliant texting system 

to help increase communication between providers. 

 

Consent Agenda – Safety 

No items brought forth for discussion. 

 

Consent Agenda – Clinic 

No items brought forth for discussion. 

 

Consent Agenda – Survey & Inspections 

No items brought forth for discussion. 

 

Page 27 of 173



 

  Page 3 of 3 

Confidential   1/4/2019 

 

 

Closing 
Ms. Richardson wanted to thank and compliment the staff, from Leaders down for all the hard work, 

including the Providers and Board support. 

 

Mr. Mathey complimented the hospital on their hard work and improvement in Quality scores. It was 

noted these strides and gains helped show the Commissioners our dedication to improvement, and is 

likely what help us gain the financing. 

 

Meeting Adjourned  The meeting adjourned at 0934 am 

 

Next Meeting   January 16, 2019 at 0800 am, CR 1 & 2 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

Page 28 of 173



Report to the Board 

From Chairman of Human Resources Committee 

December meeting 2018 

 The committee was informed that employee insurance enrollment is nearing completion.  

Rollout included a booklet type of summary that employees found helpful. 

 It was noted that employee turnover continues to be lower than past history. 

 The yearly compensation review and comparison is underway and will be completed in time for 

budget work. 

 Some results of the employee expectation survey will be available at the next HR committee 

meeting. 

 The CEO was asked to consult with staff and come up with the next three policies for the 

committee to work on.  A social media use policy was suggested as one to look at. 

  

The following items were approved for submission to the Board by vote of the HR Committee 

CONFLICT RESOLUTION POLICY 

1. This policy was approved for submission to the Board by a split vote of the committee.  Three ayes, 

one nay.  The dissenting opinion was that the existing system is functional, this change brings 

complications to it, and therefore a new policy is not required. 

DRUG AND ALCOHOL FREE WORKPLACE POLICY 

1.  This policy was approved for submission to the Board by a unanimous vote of the committee 

2.  This is a replacement for the existing substance abuse policy. 

3.  The committee agreed that a separate policy for employed physicians is not required because testing 

is covered in both this policy, and credentialing requirements. 

 

JANUARY MEETING 

 The December HR Committee meeting will be held January 21st at 3:00 P.M. 

Page 29 of 173



Page 30 of 173



Page 31 of 173



Page 32 of 173



Page 33 of 173



Page 34 of 173



Page 35 of 173



Page 36 of 173



Page 37 of 173



Page 38 of 173



Page 39 of 173



Page 40 of 173



Page 41 of 173



Page 42 of 173



Page 43 of 173



Page 44 of 173



Page 45 of 173



Page 46 of 173



Page 47 of 173



Page 48 of 173



Page 49 of 173



Page 50 of 173



Page 51 of 173



Page 52 of 173



Page 53 of 173



Page 54 of 173



Page 55 of 173



Page 56 of 173



Page 57 of 173



Page 58 of 173



Page 59 of 173



Page 60 of 173



December 2018 Finance & Audit Committee

%date

Classrooms 1 & 2

Page 61 of 173



Agenda
 

 

II. Approve Meeting Minutes Marty
Kelsey

19 CAPITAL-Nov.pdf
 

 

III. Capital Requests FY19 Marty
Kelsey

NARRATIVE TO NOVEMBER 2018 FINANCIALS.doc
 

 
FY19 FINANCIALS COMBINED - Nov 2018.pdf
 

 
FY19 Other Operating Revenue Detail-Nov.pdf
 

 
CLINIC NARRATIVE NOVEMBER 2018 FINANCIALS.doc
 

 
FY19 FINANCIALS CLINIC- Nov 2018.pdf
 

 
Key Financial Ratio Definitions.pdf
 

 
19 Board Graphs Nov.pdf
 

 
19 MHSC STATISTICS-NOV.pdf
 

 
19 FTE REPORT - 112518.pdf
 

 
19 PAYOR MIX-NOV.pdf
 

 
Days in AR-Nov.pdf
 

 
19 DAYS CASH ON HAND-NOV.pdf
 

 
19 BOARD LEGAL EXPENSE HISTORY-NOV.pdf
 

 

1. Financial reports and Narratives Tami Love

19 Cash Disbursements-Nov.pdf
 

 

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data Tami Love

B. Approve Investment Report Tami Love

2. County Title 25 and Maintenance Voucher Ron

1. Preliminary Bad Debt Ron
Cheese

C. Other Business
 

 

2. Budget Adherence Tami Love

19 INVESTMENT SUMMARY 11-30-18.pdf
 

 

IV. Financial Report  

Agenda Finance Comm December 19, 2018.docx
 

 
I. Call Meeting to Order Marty

Kelsey

Finance and Audit Comm Minutes November 28 2018 Draft.doc
 

 

Capital Priority by Quarter1-NOV.pdf
 

 

Meeting Book - December 2018 Finance & Audit Committee

Agenda

Page 62 of 173



Cheese

3. Other Reports  

FY19 County Maintenance & Title 25 Voucher-Nov.pdf
 

 

A. Financial Forum Discussions Marty
Kelsey

VI. New Business  

IT Report fo Finance December 2018.docx
 

 
V. Old Business  

CREDIT AND COLLECTIONS POLICY W PMT PLAN.pdf
 

 
VII. Adjournment Marty

Kelsey

Page 63 of 173



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
  

Wednesday ~ December 19, 2018  4:00 p.m.   Classrooms 1 & 2 
      

   Voting Members:     Non-Voting Members: 
  Marty Kelsey, Chairman  

Taylor Jones 
Irene Richardson 
Tami Love 
Jan Layne 

       Ron Cheese 
       Angel Bennett 
       Rich Tyler 
       Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Kristy Nielson 
Kari Quickenden 
Suzan Campbell 
Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
 

  Guests:                        

 John Kolb, Commission 
 

 Jim Horan 
 

Leslie Taylor 
 

     

I. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

II. Approve November 28, 2018 Meeting Minutes   Marty Kelsey 

III. Capital Requests FY 19      Marty Kelsey 

IV. Financial Report        

A. Monthly Financial Statements & Statistical Data   

1. Narratives       Tami Love 

2.  Budget Adherence      Tami Love   

B. Approve Investment Report     Marty Kelsey 

C. Other Business 

1.   Preliminary Bad Debt      Ron Cheese 

  2.  Title 25 County Voucher     Ron Cheese 

     VII.  Old Business  

A.  Comparator Hospitals      Marty Kelsey 

 

VIII.  New Business 

A.  Financial Forum Discussion      Marty Kelsey 

1. Collection Policy      Marty Kelsey 

             

IX.   Adjournment       Marty Kelsey  

        

Page 64 of 173



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

November 28, 2018 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Mr. Taylor Jones, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Ms. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

     Dr. Kristy Nielson, CNO 

Mr. Rich Tyler, Director of Information Technology 
 

Non-Voting Members Absent: Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

Ms. Angel Bennett, Director of Materials Management 

Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
      

Guests:    Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Exec/General Counsel 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director 

     Mr. John Kolb, Sweetwater Board of County 

Commissioners Liaison 

     

 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order.   
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of October 29, 2018, as presented was made by Mr. 

Jones; second by Ms. Love. Motion carried.  
 

Capital Requests FY 18 
 

Ms. Love reported she, Ms. Richardson, and Mr. Horan presented information to the Board of 

County Commissioners (BOCC) recently and requested use of maintenance funds for the capital 

expenditure request in the meeting packet. The BOCC approved the request as being lawful. Mr. 

Kelsey said the County has been mighty good to us. He feels a little uneasy about this project, 

not because it is not needed, but because he is in the dark and out of the loop and not 

knowledgeable about it. He said that even though phase one is a relatively small project, it is part 

of a larger project. Mr. Kelsey said he is just not 100% sure the Board members are 

knowledgeable with where we are with this. He asked to review the history around the past 

ambulatory surgery project. Ms. Richardson reviewed the plan outline and said part of those 

plans included a central plant upgrade. Mr. Kolb said he was personally responsible for killing 

the project and reviewed the reasons regarding concerns. Mr. Kelsey requested a workshop prior 

to the regular December board meeting to discuss the central plant upgrade request. He said there 

would be no committee action on the request at this time.  

 

Page 65 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the November 28, 2018 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

Financial Report 
 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Ms. Love reviewed the narratives included in the meeting packet. Mr. Jones noted the huge 

improvement in the clinic financials. He said the overall picture is like night and day between the 

present and the past. She noted the Building and Grounds Report and IT Report are included in 

the packet for information only and not for a report during the meeting.  

 

Approve Investment Report 
 

Mr. Kelsey asked why we submit investments to the Board for approval. Ms. Love said when 

there are no changes, she is not sure if the Board needs to approve. Mr. Kelsey said the Board 

will go ahead and approve until we have a new investment policy. 

 

The motion to approve investments of $16,603,099.74 as presented to forward to the Board for 

review and a request for approval was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Layne. Motion carried.  

 

Ms. Love reported we have moved about $5M of the $8.7M at Bank of the West. She said we are 

still waiting to get the balance moved to RSNB Bank where it will be easier to transfer to the 

other banks. She said the goal is to move everything by the beginning of the following week. Mr. 

Kelsey reported the Board received a letter from Bank of the West. 

 

Ms. Love reviewed the investment policy changes requested at the last meeting. Mr. Kelsey 

reviewed some additional questions and changes he would like to see including new investment 

types and instruments not previously addressed by the Board, new brokerage firms not 

previously approved by the Board, and reviewing vs. approving. Mr. Kelsey said Ms. Love 

might want to look into statutes and approval annually of depositories. He said he was okay with 

approving the policy to forward to the Board with the exception of the items mentioned in the 

meeting. Ms. Love said she would make the changes and forward to the full Board for approval.  

 

Other Business 
 

Ms. Love reported Mr. Cheese was out of town and distributed the preliminary bad debt 

information for review.   

 

Ms. Love reported we have submitted $82,439.43 to the County for Title 25 and have received 

all but $22K which was submitted in October. Mr. Kolb asked about the status of State 

reimbursement for Title 25. He said we have to work on this and not just sit down and take it. 

Mr. Kolb said we need to talk to the County Attorney about this. Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. 

Richardson to report on this at the next Committee meeting. 

 

Ms. Love reported we have requested $108,682.78 in maintenance fund reimbursement from the 

County. 

 

Page 66 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the November 28, 2018 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

New Business 
 

Financial Forum Discussion 
 

Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Richardson if there was anything else she would like to add to the IT 

report in the packet. Ms. Richardson said we have asked Mr. Tyler to come up with a five-year 

plan for IT. She said we need that information for the Board workshop in January.  

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for any further thoughts on the comparative hospital information. He said our 

auditors gave us four or five hospitals and one was in Wyoming. Ms. Love distributed updated 

information. She said only two on the list have 2018 data. Ms. Love said she is not sure if any 

other hospitals pull out clinic-only financials for a true comparison. She said the auditors will not 

provide the names of the hospitals. Mr. Kelsey thanked Ms. Love for the report. 

 

Ms. Richardson said we are going to try to get our Standard and Poor’s review call in January. 

She said we want to start meeting with Providers one-on-one to review their numbers with them. 

She said she and Ms. Love did that about 1 ½ years ago. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Richardson if the Board needs to look into issues discussed at the Medical 

Staff Meeting the previous evening. Ms. Richardson said a committee has been formed to meet 

with the physician. She said we need to approach the issue from what is best for the patient. Mr. 

Kelsey said he thinks the Board would like to hear some kind of resolution.  

 

Mr. Kolb said the number one complaint the Commissioners receive is the hospital’s collection 

process. He said Mr. Cheese told him it hadn’t been updated in a very long time. Mr. Kolb said 

he has heard that if you owe a lot of money, you don’t have to pay a lot, but if you don’t owe 

much, you have to pay proportionately. Mr. Kelsey asked for the Board policy on collections. 

Ms. Richardson said it’s a pretty lenient policy. Mr. Kolb said maybe it would be a good idea for 

public outreach so people know more about it and see how our policy compares to other 

hospitals. Ms. Love said we will add this to the next committee agenda to review.   

 

Following discussion, the next meeting was scheduled for Thursday, December 20 at 4:00 PM. 

Ms. Richardson said she would be unable to attend. 

 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:26 PM. 

 
 

 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson 

Page 67 of 173



MHSC Capital Budget for FYE 6/30/2019
Department ITEM Approved  Purch/Amt Variance FY#

Facilities MOB Duct Renovation 278,240                        277,743             (497)                      FY19-1
Cancer Center Looking Glass/ARIA equipment 9,168                            9,168                 -                        FY19-2
Urology Flexible Video Cystoscope 29,984                          29,984               -                        FY19-4
IT Desktop Computers 55,938                          55,223               (715)                      FY19-5
IT Laptop Computers 32,652                          32,652               -                        FY19-6
Cancer Center Looking Glass/ARIA equipment 1,476                            1,020                 (455)                      FY19-7
IT Quadramed Electronic Health Record Upgrade 234,300                        234,300             -                        FY19-8
IT Virtual Server Upgrade 155,843                        155,843             -                        FY19-9
Facilities 2019 Can Am 4 Wheeler w/ Plow 6,987                            6,987                 -                        FY19-10
IT WAN Bandwith upgrade 16,985                          16,985               -                        FY19-11
IT iPrism internet content filter appliance 21,995                          21,995               -                        FY19-12
Respiratory Trilogy Transport Ventilator 11,697                          11,697               0                           FY19-13
Medical Imaging DR Bridge Program 27,891                          27,891               -                        FY19-14
Surgical Services Steris V-Pro Max Sterilizer 111,829                        111,829             -                        FY19-15
Human Resources Healthcare Source HT 24,025                          24,025               -                        FY19-16
Cancer Center Centricity software update 9,852                            9,852                 -                        FY19-17
IT Mirth Connect interface engine 12,000                          12,000               FY19-18
Dietary Walk-in Cooler and Freezer w/ renovation 81,588                          81,588               FY19-19
Clinic Wall mounted otoscopes and opthalmoscopes 11,002                          11,002               FY19-20
Laboratory -30 Degree Freezer 5,947                            5,947                 FY19-21
Blood Bank Cell Washer 7,220                            6,475                 FY19-22
Emergency Room SANE Evidence camera 25,500                          25,500               FY19-23
Surgical Services Pediatric Foreign Body Removal Instruments 15,254                          FY19-25

-                                                
Total Budgeted 3,000,000 1,187,372             1,169,706    (1,667)             

Capital Expenditure Dollars Authorized 1,187,372  

Less Donated Capital
     FY19-13 Trilogy Transport Ventilator Foundation purchase (11,697)      
     FY19-19 Walk-in Cooler & Freezer Foundation purchase (81,588)      
     FY19-20 Otoscopes & Opthalmoscopes Foundation purchase (11,002)      
     FY19-21  -30 Degree Freezer Foundation purchase (5,947)        
     FY19-22  Cell Washer Foundation purchase (7,220)        
     FY19-23  SANE evidence camera DVS grant (25,500)      
     FY19-25 Pediatric Foreign  Body Instruments Foundation purchase (15,254)      

(158,208)    

Net Capital Outlay FYTD 2019 1,029,164  

Remaining Balance FY2019 Capital Budget 1,970,836  

Page 68 of 173



Capital Expenditures Budget by Fiscal Quarter
Budget For The Year Ending 6/30/2019

Department Requested Item Priority
Number of 

Units
Capital 
Budget Notes FY#

Quarter 1:   July - September
MAINTENANCE MOB duct return project 1 1 $278,240 approved FY19-1
IT Looking Glass equipment $9,168 approved FY19-2
CLINIC - Urology Cystoscope 1 $29,984 approved FY19-4
IT Desktop Computers and Monitors 3 50 $55,938 approved FY19-5
IT Laptops for Providers and Replacements 2 18 $32,652 approved FY19-6
IT Looking Glass equipment $1,438 approved FY19-7
IT Upgrade QCPR to Version 6.2 4 1 $234,300 approved FY19-8
IT Virtual Environment upgrade 1 $155,843 approved FY19-9
IT WAN Bandwith upgrade 5 1 $16,985 approved FY19-11
IT iPrism internet content filter appliance 5 1 $21,995 approved FY19-12

$836,543 $836,543

Quarter 2:   October - December
MAINTENANCE 2019 Can-Am 4-wheeler with Snow Plow 1 $6,987 approved FY19-10
HR Healthcare Source HT 1 1 $34,025 approved FY19-16
RADIOLOGY DR Bridge Program Enterprise CR 1 1 $27,891 approved FY19-14
SURGERY V-Pro Max Sterilizer 4 1 $111,829 approved FY19-15
IT Upgrade Mirth appliances $12,000 approved FY19-18
CANCER CENTER Centricity software update $9,852 approved FY19-17
CANCER CENTER Sterotactic Dose Verification Phantom 1 $10,250
IT Replace Core Network Switches 6 2 $79,799
SECURITY Security Camera System 1 1 $57,034
SURGERY Ultrasound System and PICC Placement device 6 1 $35,225
CARDIOPULMONARY Muse Cardiology IS 1 1 $174,094
IT QCPR Server upgrade 7 1 $120,000

$678,986 $1,515,529

Quarter 3:   January - March
SURGERY Endoscopic System Replacement 3 1 $331,834
LABORATORY Automated Urinalysis Analyzer 1 1 $130,195
MAINTENANCE - Other Depts Enginering Medical Imaging remodel 5 1 $15,000
MAINTENANCE - Other Depts OR Architectrual/Engineering/Redesign of patient spaces 8 1 $90,000
MAINTENANCE IT Heat Resolution 7 1 $85,000
OB Fetal Monitor Carts 1 1 $9,095 possible grant
LABORATORY Fluorescent Microscope 5 1 $7,371
MAINTENANCE Roof Fall Protection System 1 $69,000
BLOOD BANK Blood Bank double door refrigerator 4 1 $13,196

$750,691 $2,266,220

Page 69 of 173



Quarter 4:   April - June
RADIOLOGY Digital Portable X-Ray Unit #2 2 1 $172,535
RADIOLOGY Digital Portable X-Ray Unit #1 3 1 $172,535
MAINTENANCE - Other Depts Remodel Rad-Room 3 1 $210,000
MAINTENANCE - Other Depts Remodel Rad-Room 4 1 $175,000
BLOOD BANK Automated Blood Bank Analyzer 1 1 $113,500
RADIOLOGY-ECHO EPIC 7C Cardiac Ultrasound System 4 1 $151,557
RADIATION ONCOLOGY Sterotactic Cone System 2 1 $96,015
OB Wireless Fetal Monitor 2 1 $5,308 possible grant
LABORATORY Centrifuge, replacement 3 1 $6,810
LABORATORY Refrigerator 4 1 $7,196
BLOOD BANK Blood Bank  -20 degrees freezer 3 1 $10,573
RADIOLOGY DR for the GE Precision 500 5 1 $88,560
DIETARY Refrigeration Unit For Cooks Line 3 1 $12,889
MAINTENANCE - Other Depts Kitchen Refrigerator Prep Line 1 $10,000

$1,232,478 $3,498,698

Possible Grants: 10,000.00           WY Community Foundation

MAINTENANCE-College Hill Fire Notification System 2 1 $24,957 tabled FY19-3

EMERGENCY ROOM SDFI Camera for SANE nurses 1 1 $25,500 DVS grant FY19-23

DIETARY Walk-In Cooler and Freezer Units/Including Renovation 1 1 $81,588 Foundation FY19-19
SURGERY Percutaneous Nephrolithotomy System 2 1 $12,217 Foundation FY19-26
LABORATORY  -30 degrees freezer 2 1 $5,947 Foundation FY19-21
BLOOD BANK Blood Bank Cell Washer 2 1 $7,220 Foundation FY19-22
RESPIRATORY Respironics Trilogy Vent 2 1 $11,687 Foundation FY19-13
SURGERY Pediatric Foreign Body Removal 1 1 $15,254 Foundation FY19-25
CLINIC Wall mounted otoscopes and opthalmoscopes 32 $11,002 Foundation FY19-20

Foundation total $144,915

Page 70 of 173



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

 

To: Finance & Audit Committee  December 12, 2018 

From: Tami Love, CFO 

 

 

NARRATIVE TO NOVEMBER 2018 FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for November was a gain of 

$4,014, compared to a gain of $173,420 in the budget.  This yields a .06% operating 

margin for the month compared to 2.34% in the budget. The YTD net operating gain is 

$776,734, compared to a gain of $699,171 in the budget.  This represents a YTD 

operating margin of 2.14% compared with 1.87% in the budget.   

 

The total net loss for the month was $70,756, compared to a gain of $81,086 in the 

budget.  The YTD total net gain is $361,847, compared to a gain of $237,498 in the 

budget.  This yields a YTD total profit margin of 1.00% compared to .64% in the budget.  

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 2.99.  The existing bond covenants require that 

we maintain Debt Service Coverage of 1.25 for compliance.   

 

VOLUME.  Average inpatient census for the month was 14.3; over budget by 4.3. YTD 

average census is 12.4 compared to 11.1 in the budget and 16.9 in the prior year. 

 

Inpatient surgeries were 7 under budget at 28 and outpatient surgeries were 40 under 

budget at 116.   There were 7,344 outpatient visits, over budget by 669.     

 

Total ER visits were 1,361, under budget by 23.  There were 32 newborns in November, 

under budget by 13. Births are under budget year to date by 48.     

  

REVENUE.  Revenue for the month was $13,211,087, under budget by $335,593.  

Inpatient revenue was over budget by $501,082, outpatient revenue was under budget by 

$654,979 and the employed Provider Clinic was under budget by $181,696. 

 

YTD total revenue was $66,893,427, under budget by $1,309,408.  Inpatient revenue is 

over budget by $196,825, outpatient revenue is under budget by $1,409,207 and the 

Provider Clinic is under budget by $97,026.   

 

Net patient revenue for the month was $6,813,247, under budget by $378,554.  YTD net 

patient revenue was $34,837,810, under budget by $1,335,624.   

 

Deductions from revenue were booked at 48.4% for November compared to 46.9% in the 

budget.  YTD deductions from revenue are 47.9%, compared to 47% in the budget and 

47.1% for the same period in fiscal year 2018.    

 

 

Page 71 of 173



EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $7,063,744, under budget by $181,721.   

All expense categories were under budget for November except Repairs & Maintenance, 

Insurance expense, Other Operating expenses and Leases & Rentals. 

 

Repairs and Maintenance – This expense is over budget by $30,825 but remains 

under budget $9,698 year to date.  Repairs for the central sterile rooms were 

expensed in November with reimbursement from the insurance claim expected in 

December. 

Insurance expense – This expense is over budget by $6,968 and over budget 

$27,936 year to date.   

Other Operating expense – This expense is over budget by $101,889.  

Foundation expense and Pharmacy Floor allocation are over budget for the month.  

Leases and Rentals -  This expense is over budget by $15,294 and remains over 

budget year to date.   

 

 

BALANCE SHEET.  Operating cash at month end was $9,237,074, a decrease of 

$6,407,542 from October due to money market funds being invested into CD’s.  

Collections for the month of November were $6,390,567.  The Days of Cash on Hand are 

110 in November, down seven days from October.  The existing bond covenants require 

that we maintain 75 days of cash on hand for compliance.   

   

Gross receivables at month end were $23,276,513, an increase of $191,905 from the prior 

month.  Net patient receivables at month end were $12,257,279, up $372,572 from last 

month.  Days in Receivables are 55 for November, up 2 days from October.  

 

OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER.  Gross revenue is projected to come in over budget in 

the Hospital. Inpatient admits, Patient days, Infusions, Chemo and Lab and other 

Outpatient visits are all projecting to come in above budget. Surgeries, ER visits and 

Clinic visits are projecting to be under budget in December. Gross patient revenue is 

projecting to come in at $13.4M, with net revenue projecting to $7.3M, both close to 

budget. Collections are projecting to come in at $5.8M, which is under budget. With 

expenses expected to come in around $7.1M, we are projecting to a minimal gain in 

December.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72 of 173



Page 73 of 173



Page 74 of 173



Page 75 of 173



Page 76 of 173



Page 77 of 173



Page 78 of 173



Page 79 of 173



Page 80 of 173



Page 81 of 173



Page 82 of 173



Page 83 of 173



Page 84 of 173



Page 85 of 173



Page 86 of 173



Page 87 of 173



Page 88 of 173



JULY MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income             9,917.17 
Pharmacy sales                  15.51 
Coca Cola Commission                146.08 
Medical Records                558.15 
HPSA           30,015.62 
Cache Valley Rebate                  12.00 
Inmar Rebate             1,768.95 
Interlare 4,055.66         
Foundation Golf Trny             2,250.00 
MCR Test Amount                     0.02 
Olympus Thunderbeat             1,800.00 
PACS Storage             1,000.00 
County Maintenance Fund           13,120.28 
BCBS Payment Received Incorrectly - Wil be reversed                  72.00 
WWB Commissions                460.89 
Post Partum Supplies               (189.51)
Foundation                 (47.96)
Grants           (4,163.39)
Lab Courier                520.00 
Shriners                346.36 
Solvay             3,600.00 
Jim Bridger Physician Services 12,750.00         
Castle Rock 3,653.70           
Tata Occupation Medicine on site 14,550.00         
Sage View             2,400.00 
High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter - July 28,503.61         
Cafeteria sales 23,793.98         
July Totals 150,909.12         150,909.12           
AUGUST MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income           15,521.30 
Retirement Forfeiture                  11.17 
Medical Records                639.65 
Pharmacy sales                  80.46 
BLS 204.00            
HPSA                757.48 
Foundation - Reimburse Golf Tournament           (2,850.00)
Wind River Vending 8.75                 
Sports Physicals             3,650.00 
PACS Storage                380.00 
WWB Commissions                241.86 
Blood Systems Reversal                 (72.00)
Sweetwater Medics-Linens             2,500.00 
County Maintenance Fund           48,851.71 
Prenatal Class                  60.00 
Grants               (522.28)
Lab Courier                260.00 
Shriners                262.62 
Solvay                900.00 
Jim Bridger Retainer                800.00 
Jim Bridger Physician Services 13,812.50         
Castle Rock 2,115.30           
Tata Occupation Medicine on site 16,650.00         
Sage View             2,400.00 
High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter - August 27,723.96         
Cafeteria sales 24,801.23         
August Totals 159,187.71         310,096.83           

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OTHER OPERATING REVENUE - Detail

YEAR TO DATE 2019

Page 89 of 173



SEPTEMBER MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income           14,347.07 
Retirement Forfeiture                641.46 
Medical Records                186.55 
Pharmacy sales                  14.00 
Radiology Films                     5.00 
BLS 361.00            
HPSA                  13.19 
BCBS Entered incorrectly - reversed on 10/1 3,469.66         
Inmar Rebate 59.92              
Interlare           11,763.70 
MCR Temp Allowance           29,017.00 
Supplies             1,362.32 
PACS Storage                576.00 
WWB Commissions                115.28 
Foundation         496,842.20 
Prenatal Class                122.30 
Grants           (1,190.46)
County Maintenance Fund           21,866.14 
Shriners                234.70 
Solvay                900.00 
Jim Bridger Retainer                800.00 
Jim Bridger Physician Services 11,687.50         
Castle Rock 2,596.05           
Tata Occupation Medicine on site 12,450.00         
Sage View             2,400.00 
High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter - August 31,076.00         
Cafeteria sales 33,766.83         
Catering 2,583.66           
September Totals 678,067.07         988,163.90           
OCTOBER MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income           28,224.56 
Medical Records                280.10 
Pharmacy sales                  22.44 
Radiology Films                  10.00 
Document Copy Service                279.25 
UUHP Pmt w/no remit                  10.52 
HPSA           40,368.81 
BCBS Entered incorrectly - reversed (3,469.66)       
Cache Valley Rebate 12.00              
Coca Cola Commission                131.24 
MCR Temp Allowance-overpayment         (27,623.59)
Supplies             1,072.84 
PACS Storage                656.00 
WWB Commissions                115.03 
Wind River Vending                184.40 
Grants             8,748.29 
Shriners                346.36 
County Maintenance Fund           24,844.65 
Solvay             2,080.00 
Jim Bridger Retainer                800.00 
Jim Bridger Physician Services 14,875.00         
Castle Rock 3,365.25           
Tata Occupation Medicine on site 14,400.00         
Sage View             2,400.00 
High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter -October 33,315.76         
Cafeteria sales 24,812.64         
Catering 3,139.10           
October Totals 173,400.99         1,161,564.89        
NOVEMBER MONTHLY FYTD

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL TOTAL

Collection Agency interest income           19,875.30 

Page 90 of 173



Retirement Forfeiture           57,400.00 
Medical Records                273.40 
Pharmacy sales                  25.32 
Radiology Films             1,009.90 
HPSA           (7,631.94)
Becton, Dickinson and Co 90.00              
BLS                135.00 
Inmar Rebate                204.18 
Supplies                447.46 
PACS Storage                552.00 
Interlare             1,838.97 
Pacific Steel                  39.10 
WWB Commissions                130.44 
Red Tie Gala                750.00 
Foundation           40,250.45 
Grants               (818.15)
Post Partum                120.92 
Castle Rock - Lab Courier                780.00 
Shriners                458.02 
County Maintenance Fund           23,729.06 
Solvay                900.00 
Jim Bridger Retainer             1,600.00 
Jim Bridger Physician Services 10,625.00         
Castle Rock 2,596.05           
Tata Occupation Medicine on site 13,500.00         
Sage View             2,400.00 
High Desert Rural Health Clinic District Wamsutter 48,341.04         
Cafeteria sales 25,619.43         
Catering 9,270.00           
November Totals 254,510.95         1,416,075.84        

Page 91 of 173



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

To: Finance & Audit Committee    December 12, 2018 

From: Tami Love, CFO 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC –  NOVEMBER 2018    

 

THE CLINIC BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line for the Provider Clinic for 

November was a loss of $301,400, compared to a loss of $371,790 in the budget. The 

YTD net operating loss is $1,994,792, compared to a loss of $2,246,833 in the budget.   

 

VOLUME.  Total visits were 4,215 for November, under budget by 413 visits. YTD 

patient visits are 21,829, over budget by 103 visits. 

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the Clinic for November was $1,239,071, under budget by 

$181,696.    YTD revenue was $6,714,777, under budget by $97,026.  The Clinic 

physicians also generate hospital revenue, called enterprise revenue, which consists of 

various sources, including Lab, Medical Imaging and Surgery.  The amount of gross 

enterprise revenue generated year to date through November from the Clinic is 

$17,563,897.  This equates to $9,080,641 of net enterprise revenue with an impact to the 

bottom line of $781,843.  The gross enterprise revenue represents 26.3% of the total 

Hospital revenue year to date. 

 

Net patient revenue for the Clinic for November was $696,990, under budget by $80,737.  

YTD net patient revenue was $3,723,379, which was over budget by $42,006.   

 

Deductions from revenue for the Clinic were booked at 43.7% for November and are at 

44.5% year to date.  In November, the YTD payer mix was as follows; Commercial 

Insurance and Blue Cross consisted of 55.6% of revenue, Medicare and Medicaid 

consisted of 38.7% of revenue and Self Pay consisted of 5.3% of revenue. 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $1,078,811, which was under budget 

by $140,389.   YTD expenses were $6,062,786, which was under budget by $208,923. 

The majority of the expenses consist of Salaries and Benefits; which are 83.4% of YTD 

total expenses.  The following categories were over budget for November: 

 

Leases & Rentals – This expense is over budget by $1,483 and remains over 

budget $4,084 year to date. 

Depreciation – This expense is over budget by $2,097 and remains over budget 

$9,318 year to date. 

 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT.   Through November, the Provider Clinic revenue plus 

enterprise revenue makes up 36.3% of total hospital gross patient revenue.    

Page 92 of 173



Page 93 of 173



Page 94 of 173



Page 95 of 173



Page 96 of 173



Page 97 of 173



Page 98 of 173



Page 99 of 173



Page 100 of 173



Page 101 of 173



Page 102 of 173



Page 103 of 173



Page 104 of 173



19 Board Graphs Nov 12/13/2018 1:34 PM

   MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
   "DASHBOARD" GRAPHS

NOVEMBER 2018

  FYE 2018 ACTUAL   FYE 2019 BUDGET   FYE 2019 ACTUAL

AVERAGE ACUTE CENSUS ER IP+OP VISITS

INPATIENT CHARGES OUTPATIENT CHARGES

TOTAL NET OPERATING REVENUE OPERATING EXPENSE

AVERAGE CHARGE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY AVERAGE CHARGE PER OUTPATIENT VISIT (Inc. ER)

AVERAGE NET OPERATING REVENUE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY    AVERAGE OPERATING EXPENSE PER ADJUSTED PATIENT DAY

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

$0
$500,000

$1,000,000
$1,500,000
$2,000,000
$2,500,000
$3,000,000
$3,500,000
$4,000,000
$4,500,000
$5,000,000

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0
$1,000,000
$2,000,000
$3,000,000
$4,000,000
$5,000,000
$6,000,000
$7,000,000
$8,000,000
$9,000,000

$0

$2,000

$4,000

$6,000

$8,000

$10,000

$12,000

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$0

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

Page 105 of 173



STATISTICS Actual Budget PY YTD YTD YTD YTD
Nov-18 Nov-18 Nov-17 Nov-18 Nov-17 Nov-16 Nov-15

Volumes:
Case Mix

Medicare 1.3765 1.4142 1.4142 1.2668 1.3132 1.4825 1.3947
All payers 0.8790 0.8402 0.8402 0.7803 0.8721 0.8707 0.8457

Admissions
Med 70 41 41 324 280 385 439
ICU 23 28 28 103 123 161 149
Surgery 5 6 6 36 28 48 51
OB 30 46 46 169 213 238 230
Newborn 31 45 45 168 209 231 225

Total Admissions 159 166 166 800 853 1,063 1,094

Discharges
Med 81 55 55 371 326 450 481
ICU 5 12 12 41 63 70 89
Surgery 10 7 7 50 42 65 72
OB 32 45 45 170 210 234 231
Newborn 32 45 45 168 207 228 226

Total Discharges 160 164 164 800 848 1,047 1,099

Patient Days:
Med 289 159 159 1,220 938 1,836 1,758
ICU 46 46 46 203 246 381 410
Surgery 39 26 26 192 159 203 209
OB 54 68 68 276 354 393 371
Newborn 49 68 68 285 356 367 335

Total Patient Days 477 367 367 2,176 2,053 3,180 3,083

Observation Bed Days 86 153 153 507 602 470 378

Surgery Statistics:
IP Surgeries 28 35 35 128 146 202 161
OP Surgeries 116 156 156 661 786 702 728

Outpatient Statistics:
X-ray 674 885 885 3,491 3,750 3,505 3,549
Mammography 197 191 191 742 791 759 875
Ultrasound 307 328 328 1,514 1,518 1,347 1,323
Cat Scan 438 433 433 2,181 2,148 1,971 1,988
MRI 110 86 86 605 536 467 548
Nuclear Medicine 33 51 51 181 247 176 186
PET Scan 9 2 2 31 51 52 29
Echo 49 0 0 158 0 0
Laboratory 3,571 2,578 2,578 14,124 12,817 14,967 13,131
Histology 170 176 176 860 810 713 629
Respiratory Therapy 214 325 325 1,025 1,360 1,246 1,120
Cardiovascular 386 481 481 2,037 2,221 2,299 2,314
Sleep Lab 40 28 28 168 147 125 96
Cardiac Rehab 265 326 326 1,418 1,660 2,327 2,139
Physical Therapy 153 120 120 702 942 1,252 1,254
Dialysis 386 305 305 1,946 1,557 1,187 1,333
Medical Oncology 189 159 159 862 821 957 1,021
Radiation Oncology 153 201 201 944 1,247 1,489 1,638
Total Outpatients Visits 7,344 6,675 6,675 32,989 32,623 34,839 33,173

Clinic Visits - Primary Care 3,891 4,237 4,341 19,728 20,358 22,327 28,826
Clinic Visits - Specialty Clinics 324 391 429 2,101 2,345 2,727 2,603

ER visits admitted 141 138 138 680 662 731 719
ER visits Discharged 1,220 1,246 1,246 5,971 6,130 6,242 6,462
Total ER visits 1,361 1,384 1,384 6,651 6,792 6,973 7,181

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
NOVEMBER 2018

Page 106 of 173



19 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 1 of 6 12/4/2018 9:32 AM

                          MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

 Variance
PPE 10/28/2018 11/11/2018 11/25/2018 Variance YTD from budget

BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease
AVG CENSUS 11.80 11.6 11.1 16.4 4.6                    5.21                -                     136.4
ER VISITS (Avg Day) 45                  40.6 43.6 46.1 1.3                    2.57                -                     474.6
SURGERIES (IP+OP) 78                  65 61 72 (5.6)                  11.00              -                     796.0
BIRTHS 19                  13 13 14 (5.0)                  1.00                -                     176.0
CHARGES -IP  $000 1,358            1238 1236 1633 275                   397.00           -                     14689.0
                 -OP $000 4,987            4429 4683 4210 (777)                 -                  473.00               50172.0
                 -TOTAL $000 6,345            5667 5919 5843 (502)                 -                  76.00                 64861.0
Adjusted Patient Days 772                746                 747                 819                 48                     72.32              -                     8,456.34               

Paid FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 24.5 20.4            19.4            24.2            (0.3)                  4.88                -                     21.3 (3.2)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 7.2 5.4              5.5              3.4              (3.8)                  -                  2.13                   7.0 (0.2)
610 OB FLOOR 5.3 6.4              6.4              6.7              1.4                    0.29                -                     6.3 1.0
611 NURSERY 7.2 6.3              6.4              6.7              (0.5)                  0.29                -                     6.7 (0.5)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 4.9 3.0              3.0              3.0              (1.9)                  0.00                -                     3.1 (1.8)
615 OUTPATIENT SERVICES 0.9 1.6              2.2              1.6              0.7                    -                  0.59                   1.6 0.7
620 ICU 12.5 10.0            10.8            10.8            (1.7)                  -                  0.04                   10.4 (2.1)
630 OR 12.1 14.1            12.7            13.0            0.9                    0.32                -                     13.2 1.1
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.8 5.7              5.7              5.3              (1.5)                  -                  0.40                   5.6 (1.2)
633 RECOVERY 2.8 2.6              4.2              3.3              0.5                    -                  0.91                   3.2 0.4
634 CENTRAL STERILE 3 2.9              2.9              3.1              0.1                    0.27                -                     2.8 (0.2)
640 DIALYSIS 7 7.7              7.0              8.2              1.2                    1.21                -                     7.4 0.4
650 ER 21.5 20.2            21.7            24.0            2.5                    2.25                -                     22.0 0.5
651 TRAUMA 1.3 2.1              2.1              2.3              1.0                    0.23                -                     2.0 0.7
652 SANE 0.9 1.1              1.1              1.1              0.2                    -                  0.04                   1.1 0.2
660 RADIATION ONC 6.6 7.0              7.0              7.0              0.4                    0.02                -                     6.8 0.2
661 MEDICAL ONC 6 5.7              5.6              5.8              (0.2)                  0.20                -                     6.1 0.1
700 LABORATORY 31.1 30.0            29.1            29.7            (1.4)                  0.61                -                     29.5 (1.6)
701 HISTOLOGY 2 1.6              2.1              2.0              -                    -                  0.05                   2.0 0.0
702 BLOOD BANK 1 1.1              1.3              0.9              (0.1)                  -                  0.34                   1.1 0.1
710 RADIOLOGY 9.7 9.0              8.9              9.2              (0.5)                  0.32                -                     9.4 (0.3)
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.6 1.2              1.2              1.0              (0.6)                  -                  0.22                   1.2 (0.4)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.25 3.2              3.0              3.2              (0.1)                  0.19                -                     3.7 0.5
713 NUC MED 1.6 1.3              1.6              1.1              (0.5)                  -                  0.51                   1.4 (0.2)
714 CAT SCAN 4.7 4.8              4.5              4.2              (0.5)                  -                  0.26                   4.4 (0.3)
715 MRI 1.3 1.1              1.2              1.3              (0.0)                  0.04                -                     1.2 (0.1)
716 PET SCAN 0.1 0.1              -              -              (0.1)                  -                  -                     0.0 (0.1)
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY 1.25 0.8              1.1              1.0              (0.3)                  -                  0.06                   0.8 (0.4)
720 RESPIRATORY 6 6.7              7.4              6.6              0.6                    -                  0.86                   7.2 1.2
721 SLEEP LAB 2.3 1.6              2.0              1.9              (0.4)                  -                  0.09                   1.7 (0.6)
722 CARDIO 2.3 1.9              2.0              1.8              (0.5)                  -                  0.15                   1.9 (0.4)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.4 2.3              2.3              2.3              (0.1)                  -                  0.04                   2.3 (0.1)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.5 3.5              3.4              3.2              (0.3)                  -                  0.21                   3.3 (0.2)
780 EDUCATION 2 1.2              0.9              1.0              (1.0)                  0.12                -                     0.6 (1.4)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
782 QUALITY 4 4.3              4.2              3.9              (0.1)                  -                  0.25                   4.4 0.4
783 INFECTION CONTROL 2 1.9              2.0              1.6              (0.4)                  -                  0.40                   2.2 0.2
784 ACCREDITATION 3 2.9              3.0              2.9              (0.1)                  -                  0.09                   2.6 (0.4)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              -                    -                  -                     3.0 0.0
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 12.6 12.8            12.9            12.7            0.1                    -                  0.22                   12.9 0.3
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 5.3 5.2              5.5              5.0              (0.3)                  -                  0.49                   5.3 (0.0)
800 MAINTENANCE 11.7 11.6            11.8            12.0            0.3                    0.23                -                     11.4 (0.3)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 23.5 25.2            22.4            21.7            (1.8)                  -                  0.65                   22.8 (0.7)
802 LAUNDRY 6.5 6.4              6.7              6.5              (0.0)                  -                  0.21                   6.2 (0.3)
803 BIO MED 2 1.1              1.0              1.1              (0.9)                  0.02                -                     1.0 (1.0)
810 SECURITY 8.3 8.1              8.1              8.0              (0.3)                  -                  0.07                   8.1 (0.2)
811 EMERGENCY MGMT 0.1 -              0.1              -              (0.1)                  -                  0.14                   0.1 (0.0)
850 PURCHASING 5 5.0              5.0              5.0              -                    -                  0.00                   5.0 0.0
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              -                    -                  -                     3.0 0.0
870 DIETARY 17.6 16.2            19.2            18.0            0.4                    -                  1.21                   16.8 (0.8)
871 DIETICIANS 1.5 2.0              2.0              2.0              0.5                    -                  -                     1.2 (0.3)
900 ADMINISTRATION 6 6.0              6.0              6.0              -                    -                  -                     6.0 0.0
901 COMM SVC 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.5 2.8              2.8              2.8              0.3                    -                  -                     2.4 (0.1)
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.3)                  -                  -                     1.0 (0.3)
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
905 NURSING ADMIN 4.3 3.7              3.7              4.0              (0.3)                  0.37                -                     4.4 0.1
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 8 8.0              8.0              8.0              -                    -                  -                     7.9 (0.1)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.6 4.4              4.4              4.3              (0.3)                  -                  0.08                   4.4 (0.2)
930 FISCAL SERVICES 5 4.8              4.8              4.8              (0.2)                  -                  -                     4.8 (0.2)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 14 13.8            13.8            13.6            (0.4)                  -                  0.26                   13.9 (0.1)
941 ADMITTING 13.4 16.1            14.9            14.5            1.1                    -                  0.41                   14.8 1.4
942 COMMUNICATION 3 3.1              2.3              3.7              0.7                    1.31                -                     2.9 (0.1)
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 4 4.0              4.0              4.0              0.0                    0.01                -                     3.8 (0.2)

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 107 of 173



19 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 2 of 6 12/4/2018 9:32 AM

PPE 10/28/2018 11/11/2018 11/25/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

948 NEW ORTHO 1 -              -              -              (1.0)                  -                  -                     0.0 (1.0)
949 DENKER 3 3.0              3.0              3.0              (0.0)                  -                  0.02                   3.2 0.2
950 OLIVER 3.1 3.0              3.0              2.9              (0.3)                  -                  0.13                   2.9 (0.2)
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST 2 -              -              -              (2.0)                  -                  -                     0.0 (2.0)
953 STEWART 2.5 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.5)                  -                  -                     1.3 (1.2)
954 WHEELER 3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (2.0)                  -                  -                     1.4 (1.6)
956 KATTAN 3.5 1.0              1.0              1.0              (2.5)                  -                  -                     1.5 (2.0)
957 STARLA LETTE 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.2 (0.8)
958 VERONESE 0 -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.2 0.2
959 GREWAL 3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (2.0)                  -                  -                     1.4 (1.6)
960 SANDERS 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.3 (0.7)
961 DANSIE 2.5 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.5)                  -                  -                     1.3 (1.2)
962 BOWERS 2 0.6              0.6              0.7              (1.4)                  0.10                -                     1.0 (1.0)
963 LONG 3 0.9              0.9              0.9              (2.1)                  -                  -                     1.1 (1.9)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.0 (1.0)
966 OCC MED 1 1.1              1.1              1.1              0.1                    -                  0.02                   1.1 0.1
967 PA PALINEK 1.5 -              -              -              (1.5)                  -                  -                     0.0 (1.5)
969 PAWAR 2 2.0              2.0              2.0              0.0                    0.01                -                     2.1 0.1
970 CROFTS 2.5 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.5)                  -                  -                     1.2 (1.3)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 1 1.9              1.9              1.8              0.8                    -                  0.11                   1.9 0.9
972 FARSON CLINIC 0 -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.0 0.0
973 LAURIDSEN 1 0.9              0.9              1.0              -                    0.13                -                     0.9 (0.1)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 13.5 39.0            38.3            36.5            23.0                  -                  1.86                   30.9 17.4
976 LEHMAN 2 0.8              0.8              0.7              (1.4)                  -                  0.13                   0.8 (1.2)
978 HOSPITALIST 4.2 4.2              4.2              4.3              0.1                    0.06                -                     4.2 0.0
980 JENSEN 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     0.8 (0.2)
981 CROFT 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.0 0.0
982 CHRISTENSEN 3 1.0              1.0              1.0              (2.0)                  -                  -                     1.5 (1.5)
988 CURRY 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.6 (0.4)
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN 0 -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.0 0.0
991 JAMIAS 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.2 (0.8)
992 ASPER 1 1.0              1.0              1.0              -                    -                  -                     1.2 0.2
993 LIU 2 1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.1 (0.9)
994 DUCK 2 1.1              -              -              (2.0)                  -                  -                     0.8 (1.2)
996 SARETTE 0.6 1.2              0.6              1.2              0.6                    0.60                -                     1.0 0.4
997 OUTPATIENT SERVICES 0.5 -              0.1              -              (0.5)                  -                  0.11                   0.0 (0.5)

TOTAL Paid FTEs 464.2         449.8          448.3          448.7          (15.5)            0.33                -                     446.6                (17.6)                 
TOTAL WORKED FTEs 422.4         413.2          413.7          388.7          (33.7)            -                  25.02                 403.4                (19.0)                 

WORKED % Paid 91% 92% 92% 87% -4% -                  0.06                   90% (0.0)                       

CONTRACT FTES (Inc above) 2.3 3.3 2.3 2.4 0.1               0.07            -                5.1                    2.8                    

GROSS EMPLOYEE PAYROLL 1,367,862   1,360,759   1,381,868   1,381,868    21,109.09     -                     8,280,222             

 Average Employee Hourly Rate $38.01 $37.94 $38.50 $38.50 0.56                -                     #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Benchmark Paid FTEs 6.63           8.44            8.40            7.67            1.04             -              0.74               #DIV/0! #DIV/0!
per  Adj. Occupied Bed (APD)

WORKED FTEs (Including Contract)

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 22.3           19.0            17.0            22.4            0.1                    5.45                -                     19.1 (3.2)
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 6.6             5.3              5.1              3.0              (3.5)                  -                  2.11                   6.7 0.1
610 OB FLOOR 4.8             6.0              6.2              6.0              1.2                    -                  0.20                   5.9 1.0
611 NURSERY 6.6             5.4              4.8              6.2              (0.4)                  1.36                -                     5.5 (1.1)
612 LABOR & DELIVERY 4.5             2.4              2.9              3.0              (1.4)                  0.14                -                     2.8 (1.7)
615 OUTPATIENT SERVICES 0.8             1.3              1.5              1.5              0.7                    -                  0.02                   1.5 0.7
620 ICU 11.4           8.9              9.7              10.7            (0.7)                  1.04                -                     9.5 (1.9)
630 OR 11.0           13.1            12.2            11.9            0.9                    -                  0.24                   12.4 1.4
631 SAME DAY SURGERY 6.2             5.5              5.0              4.6              (1.6)                  -                  0.43                   5.0 (1.1)
633 RECOVERY 2.5             2.5              3.5              2.8              0.2                    -                  0.76                   3.0 0.4
634 CENTRAL STERILE 2.7             2.7              2.8              2.8              0.0                    -                  0.02                   2.5 (0.3)
640 DIALYSIS 6.4             7.5              6.9              7.4              1.0                    0.44                -                     6.9 0.5
650 ER 19.6           19.4            21.0            21.1            1.5                    0.02                -                     20.2 0.7
651 TRAUMA 1.2             1.8              2.0              1.8              0.6                    -                  0.17                   1.7 0.5
652 SANE 0.8             1.1              1.1              1.1              0.3                    -                  0.04                   1.1 0.3
660 RADIATION ONC 6.0             5.9              6.7              5.4              (0.6)                  -                  1.27                   6.0 0.0
661 MEDICAL ONC 5.5             5.2              5.3              4.1              (1.4)                  -                  1.24                   5.2 (0.3)
700 LABORATORY 28.3           27.0            26.1            24.4            (3.9)                  -                  1.71                   26.2 (2.1)
701 HISTOLOGY 1.8             1.2              2.0              1.7              (0.1)                  -                  0.29                   1.8 (0.0)
702 BLOOD BANK 0.9             1.1              1.3              0.9              0.0                    -                  0.34                   1.1 0.2

Page 108 of 173



19 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 3 of 6 12/4/2018 9:32 AM

PPE 10/28/2018 11/11/2018 11/25/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

710 RADIOLOGY 8.8             8.6              8.2              8.3              (0.5)                  0.09                -                     8.6 (0.2)
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 1.5             1.2              1.2              1.0              (0.5)                  -                  0.22                   1.1 (0.4)
712 ULTRASOUND 3.0             3.1              2.8              2.8              (0.2)                  0.02                -                     3.4 0.5
713 NUC MED 1.5             1.0              1.1              0.5              (1.0)                  -                  0.65                   1.0 (0.4)
714 CAT SCAN 4.3             4.7              4.3              4.0              (0.2)                  -                  0.29                   4.2 (0.1)
715 MRI 1.2             1.0              1.0              0.9              (0.3)                  -                  0.14                   1.0 (0.2)
716 PET SCAN 0.1             0.1              -              -              (0.1)                  -                  -                     0.0 (0.1)
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY 1.1             0.8              0.9              0.7              (0.4)                  -                  0.13                   0.8 (0.3)
720 RESPIRATORY 5.5             6.3              6.8              6.0              0.5                    -                  0.83                   6.5 1.0
721 SLEEP LAB 2.1             1.5              2.0              1.9              (0.2)                  -                  0.08                   1.6 (0.5)
722 CARDIO 2.1             1.9              1.9              1.4              (0.7)                  -                  0.48                   1.6 (0.5)
723 CARDIAC REHAB 2.2             2.1              2.3              1.9              (0.3)                  -                  0.38                   2.1 (0.1)
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY 3.2             3.2              3.2              2.9              (0.3)                  -                  0.32                   2.9 (0.2)
780 PATIENT ED 1.8             1.2              0.9              1.0              (0.8)                  0.12                -                     0.6 (1.2)
781 SOCIAL SERVICES 0.9             0.5              1.0              0.9              (0.0)                  -                  0.13                   0.9 (0.0)
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 3.6             3.8              4.0              3.8              0.1                    -                  0.29                   3.9 0.3
783 INFECTION CONTROL 1.8             1.8              2.0              0.7              (1.1)                  -                  1.30                   1.6 (0.2)
784 COMPLIANCE 2.7             2.8              2.9              2.3              (0.4)                  -                  0.55                   2.4 (0.4)
786 NURSING INFORMATICS 2.7             2.9              1.8              2.8              0.0                    1.00                -                     2.7 (0.0)
790 HEALTH INFORMATION 11.5           11.1            12.1            11.0            (0.5)                  -                  1.18                   11.3 (0.2)
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 4.8             5.0              3.9              4.3              (0.5)                  0.45                -                     4.7 (0.2)
800 MAINTENANCE 10.6           10.6            11.4            10.5            (0.2)                  -                  0.91                   10.4 (0.3)
801 HOUSEKEEPING 21.4           23.3            20.9            19.1            (2.3)                  -                  1.74                   20.6 (0.8)
802 LAUNDRY 5.9             6.1              6.4              5.7              (0.2)                  -                  0.68                   5.6 (0.3)
803 BIO MED 1.8             0.8              1.0              0.9              (0.9)                  -                  0.14                   0.9 (0.9)
810 SECURITY 7.6             6.9              7.3              6.8              (0.7)                  -                  0.51                   7.1 (0.4)
811 EMERGENCY MGMT 0.1             -              0.1              -              (0.1)                  -                  0.14                   0.1 (0.0)
850 PURCHASING 4.6             4.1              4.0              3.8              (0.8)                  -                  0.21                   0.1 (4.5)
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY 2.7             2.1              2.8              2.6              (0.2)                  -                  0.28                   4.4 1.7
870 DIETARY 16.0           14.5            16.9            15.5            (0.6)                  -                  1.47                   2.5 (13.6)
871 DIETICIANS 1.4             2.0              2.0              2.0              0.6                    -                  -                     15.4 14.0
900 ADMINISTRATION 5.5             6.0              5.9              4.0              (1.5)                  -                  1.90                   1.2 (4.3)
901 COMM SVC 0.9             0.6              1.0              0.9              (0.0)                  -                  0.10                   5.3 4.4
902 MED STAFF SVC 2.3             2.4              2.3              2.0              (0.3)                  -                  0.38                   0.9 (1.4)
903 MHSC FOUNDATION 1.2             0.7              0.7              1.0              (0.2)                  0.30                -                     2.1 0.9
904 VOLUNTEER SRV 0.9             0.9              1.0              1.0              0.1                    -                  -                     0.9 0.0
905 NURSING ADMIN 3.9             3.5              3.5              3.5              (0.4)                  0.07                -                     0.9 (3.0)
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.8              (0.1)                  -                  0.20                   3.8 2.9
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 7.3             6.4              7.5              6.7              (0.6)                  -                  0.80                   0.9 (6.4)
920 HUMAN RESOURCES 4.2             4.4              4.4              3.8              (0.4)                  -                  0.57                   7.2 3.0
930 FISCAL SERVICES 4.6             3.8              4.8              4.0              (0.5)                  -                  0.72                   4.2 (0.4)
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 12.7           12.1            12.5            11.0            (1.7)                  -                  1.46                   4.2 (8.5)
941 ADMITTING 12.2           14.9            14.9            13.5            1.4                    -                  1.36                   12.4 0.2
942 COMMUNICATION 2.7             3.1              2.3              3.4              0.6                    1.01                -                     14.1 11.4
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 3.6             3.8              3.8              3.3              (0.4)                  -                  0.54                   2.8 (0.9)
948 NEW OTHO 0.9             -              -              -              (0.9)                  -                  -                     3.4 2.5
949 DENKER 2.7             2.9              2.9              2.2              (0.6)                  -                  0.72                   0.0 (2.7)
950 OLIVER 2.8             2.9              3.0              2.1              (0.8)                  -                  0.90                   2.7 (0.1)
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST 1.8             -              -              -              (1.8)                  -                  -                     2.6 0.7
953 STEWART 2.3             0.8              0.7              0.8              (1.5)                  0.10                -                     0.0 (2.3)
954 WHEELER 2.7             0.8              1.0              1.0              (1.7)                  -                  -                     1.1 (1.6)
956 KATTAN 3.2             0.8              1.0              1.0              (2.2)                  -                  -                     1.2 (1.9)
957 STARLA LETTE 1.8             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.8)                  -                  -                     1.4 (0.4)
958 VERONESE -             -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.2 1.2
959 GREWAL 2.7             1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.7)                  -                  -                     0.1 (2.6)
960 SANDERS 1.8             0.2              0.7              0.9              (0.9)                  0.20                -                     1.2 (0.6)
961 DANSIE 2.3             1.0              1.0              1.0              (1.3)                  -                  -                     1.1 (1.2)
962 BOWERS 1.8             0.6              0.6              0.6              (1.3)                  -                  -                     1.2 (0.6)
963 LONG 2.7             0.9              0.9              0.9              (1.9)                  -                  -                     0.8 (1.9)
964 JAKE JOHNSON 1.8             1.0              0.5              1.0              (0.8)                  0.50                -                     1.0 (0.8)
966 OCC MED 0.9             1.1              1.1              1.0              0.1                    -                  0.13                   1.0 0.0
967 PA PALINEK 1.4             -              -              -              (1.4)                  -                  -                     1.0 (0.3)
969 PAWAR 1.8             2.0              1.3              1.9              0.1                    0.55                -                     0.0 (1.8)
970 CROFTS 2.3             1.0              0.9              0.9              (1.4)                  -                  -                     1.8 (0.5)
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 0.9             1.9              1.9              1.7              0.8                    -                  0.22                   1.1 0.2
972 FARSON CLINIC -             -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.8 1.8
973 LAURIDSEN 0.9             0.9              0.9              0.3              (0.6)                  -                  0.58                   0.0 (0.9)
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 12.3           37.6            35.8            30.1            17.8                  -                  5.68                   0.8 (11.5)
976 LEHMAN 1.8             0.8              0.8              0.7              (1.2)                  -                  0.13                   28.3 26.5
978 HOSPITALIST 3.8             4.2              4.2              4.3              0.4                    0.06                -                     0.7 (3.1)
980 JENSEN 0.9             0.9              1.0              0.8              (0.1)                  -                  0.20                   4.2 3.3
981 CROFT 0.9             0.9              0.9              1.0              0.1                    0.10                -                     0.7 (0.2)
982 CHRISTENSEN 2.7             0.7              1.0              1.0              (1.7)                  -                  -                     0.9 (1.9)
988 CURRY 1.8             1.0              0.8              0.8              (1.0)                  -                  -                     1.3 (0.5)
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -             -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.3 1.3
991 JAMIAS 1.8             1.0              0.5              0.5              (1.3)                  -                  -                     0.0 (1.8)
992 ASPER 0.9             1.0              1.0              0.9              (0.0)                  -                  0.10                   1.0 0.1
993 LIU 1.8             1.0              1.0              1.0              (0.8)                  -                  -                     0.9 (1.0)
994 DUCK 1.8             1.1              -              -              (1.8)                  -                  -                     1.0 (0.8)

Page 109 of 173



19 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 4 of 6 12/4/2018 9:32 AM

PPE 10/28/2018 11/11/2018 11/25/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

996 SARETTE 0.5             1.2              0.6              1.2              0.7                    0.60                -                     0.8 0.3
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS 0.5             -              0.1              -              (0.5)                  -                  0.11                   0.9 0.5

TOTAL WORKED FTEs 422.4         413.2          413.7          388.7          (33.73)          -                  25.02                 403.4                (19.0)                 

CONTRCT FTES (Inc above) 2.3                 3.3                  2.3                  2.4                  0.09             0.07                -                     5.1                    2.8                    

OVERTIME HOURS Current OT
OT Dollars YTD Hours

600 MEDICAL FLOOR 0.8              2.0              11.3            236.61             9.25                -                     39.0                       
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 7.3              11.0            4.0              105.32             -                  7.00                   409.8                     
610 OB FLOOR -              0.3              -              -                    -                  0.25                   37.3                       
611 NURSERY 9.5              -              9.3              464.26             9.25                -                     27.8                       
612 LABOR & DELIVERY -              -              0.3              15.88               0.25                -                     0.3                         
615 OUTPATIENT SERVICES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
620 ICU -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     2.5                         
630 OR 9.0              6.3              0.3              10.13               -                  6.00                   116.5                     
631 SAME DAY SURGERY -              25.3            0.8              30.38               -                  24.50                 71.3                       
633 RECOVERY -              22.3            -              -                    -                  22.25                 28.8                       
634 CENTRAL STERILE -              1.3              7.8              176.21             6.50                -                     48.0                       
640 DIALYSIS 10.5            11.3            29.0            1,351.85          17.75              -                     172.5                     
650 ER 23.5            22.0            16.0            681.15             -                  6.00                   240.0                     
651 TRAUMA -              7.0              12.8            295.04             5.75                -                     60.3                       
652 SANE 2.0              1.3              2.0              109.20             0.75                -                     23.5                       
660 RADIATION ONC 3.8              0.8              0.8              41.48               -                  -                     10.3                       
661 MEDICAL ONC 1.0              -              1.0              29.06               1.00                -                     11.3                       
700 LABORATORY 51.5            17.8            23.8            873.82             6.00                -                     278.0                     
701 HISTOLOGY 0.8              4.3              -              -                    -                  4.25                   25.8                       
702 BLOOD BANK 0.3              4.0              0.5              24.69               -                  3.50                   11.0                       
710 RADIOLOGY 3.8              6.5              8.0              258.12             1.50                -                     48.5                       
711 MAMMOGRPAHY 0.5              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.8                         
712 ULTRASOUND 2.5              6.3              2.0              127.03             -                  4.25                   44.8                       
713 NUC MED -              5.8              -              -                    -                  5.75                   12.3                       
714 CAT SCAN -              2.8              0.3              8.80                  -                  2.50                   11.3                       
715 MRI 2.0              1.0              -              -                    -                  1.00                   8.0                         
716 PET SCAN 2.8              -              -              -                    -                  -                     2.8                         
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY 0.3              -              -              -                    -                  -                     7.8                         
720 RESPIRATORY -              2.8              -              -                    -                  2.75                   14.8                       
721 SLEEP LAB 1.3              5.5              6.5              312.52             1.00                -                     58.0                       
722 CARDIO 1.3              4.0              -              -                    -                  4.00                   5.5                         
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
780 PATIENT ED -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT 3.0              -              -              -                    -                  -                     3.3                         
783 INFECTION CONTROL -              3.0              -              -                    -                  3.00                   33.5                       
784 COMPLIANCE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     3.0                         
786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
790 HEALTH INFORMATION -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.3                         
791 CASE MANAGEMENT 8.0              12.3            4.0              255.21             -                  8.25                   104.5                     
800 MAINTENANCE 3.3              7.3              18.3            579.79             11.00              -                     62.8                       
801 HOUSEKEEPING 49.8            65.8            37.8            658.26             -                  28.00                 447.5                     
802 LAUNDRY 4.8              10.8            10.8            190.16             -                  -                     189.5                     
803 BIO MED 2.0              -              -              -                    -                  -                     6.3                         
810 SECURITY 4.3              7.8              2.0              64.02               -                  5.75                   97.0                       
811 EMERGENCY MGMT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
850 PURCHASING 0.3              0.3              -              -                    -                  0.25                   11.5                       
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.3                         
870 DIETARY 51.0            61.8            50.0            1,239.37          -                  11.75                 387.5                     
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
902 MED STAFF SVC -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     0.3                         
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
905 NURSING ADMIN -              -              5.5              345.07             5.50                -                     97.5                       
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
930 FISCAL SERVICES -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.0                         
940 BUSINESS OFFICE 2.0              1.8              3.0              67.50               1.25                -                     170.0                     
941 ADMITTING 128.3          81.3            59.0            1,476.09          -                  22.25                 1,437.5                  
942 COMMUNICATION 29.3            7.0              14.8            329.06             7.75                -                     169.3                     
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING 0.8              0.8              1.5              37.39               0.75                -                     7.3                         
948 NEW ORTHO -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
949 DENKER -              0.8              -              -                    -                  0.75                   5.7                         
950 OLIVER 2.0              1.3              -              -                    -                  1.25                   25.3                       
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         

Page 110 of 173



19 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 5 of 6 12/4/2018 9:32 AM

PPE 10/28/2018 11/11/2018 11/25/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

953 STEWART -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     14.5                       
954 WHEELER -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     4.3                         
956 KATTAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.8                         
957 STARLA LETTE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
959 GREWAL -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     5.5                         
960 SANDERS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     26.5                       
961 DANSIE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     5.9                         
962 BOWERS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
963 LONG -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     3.8                         
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
966 OCC MED 9.5              6.8              7.0              360.64             0.25                -                     94.3                       
967 PA PALINEK -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
969 PAWAR 0.5              -              0.3              14.99               0.25                -                     3.8                         
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC 0.3              1.0              -              -                    -                  1.00                   32.3                       
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING 61.5            56.5            17.8            706.52             -                  38.75                 428.8                     
976 PA LEHMAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     2.4                         
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
980 JENSEN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
981 CROFT -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
982 CHRISTENSEN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     10.4                       
988 CURRY -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     8.4                         
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
992 ASPER -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
993 LIU -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.0                         
994 DUCK -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     1.0                         
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS -              -              -              -                    -                  -                     -                         

TOTAL OT HOURS 494.3          496.8          367.5          11,476         -                  129.25              5,733.5             
TOTAL OT FTEs 6.2              6.2              4.6              -                  1.62                   6.5                    
OT % WORKED HOURS 1.5% 1.5% 1.2% -                  0.3%

CONTRACT HOURS PPE 10/28/2018 11/11/2018 11/25/2018 Variance
BUDGET Current FTE Increase Decrease FTE YTD from budget

600 MEDICAL FLOOR -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
605 BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 30.5            13.5            -              -               -                  13.50                 1.40                       1.40                       
610 OB FLOOR 0.5             -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         (0.50)                      
611 NURSERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
612 LABOR & DELIVERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
615 OUTPATIENT SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
620 ICU -              -              -              -               -                  -                     0.05                       0.05                       
630 OR 1.0             236.7          172.0          191.4          2.4               19.42              -                     2.21                       1.21                       
631 SAME DAY SURGERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
633 RECOVERY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
634 CENTRAL STERILE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
640 DIALYSIS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
650 ER 0.3             -              -              -              -               -                  -                     0.33                       0.03                       
651 TRAUMA -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
652 SANE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
660 RADIATION ONC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
661 MEDICAL ONC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
700 LABORATORY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
701 HISTOLOGY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     0.13                       0.13                       
702 BLOOD BANK -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
710 RADIOLOGY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
711 MAMMOGRPAHY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
712 ULTRASOUND 0.5             -              -              -              -               -                  -                     0.49                       (0.01)                      
713 NUC MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
714 CAT SCAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
715 MRI -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
716 PET SCAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
717 ECHOCARDIOGRAPHY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
720 RESPIRATORY -             -              -              -              -               -                  -                     0.46                       0.46                       
721 SLEEP LAB -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
722 CARDIO -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
723 CARDIAC REHAB -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
730 PHYSICAL THERAPY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
780 PATIENT ED -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
781 SOCIAL SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
782 QUALITY & ACCREDIT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
783 INFECTION CONTROL -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
784 ACCREDITATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         

CHANGE FROM
LAST PAY PERIOD

Page 111 of 173



19 FTE REPORT 2 FTE Trend 6 of 6 12/4/2018 9:32 AM

PPE 10/28/2018 11/11/2018 11/25/2018 Variance YTD from budget
BUDGET from Bud Increase Decrease

LAST PAY PERIOD

786 NURSING INFORMATICS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
790 HEALTH INFORMATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
791 CASE MANAGEMENT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
800 MAINTENANCE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
801 HOUSEKEEPING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
802 LAUNDRY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
803 BIO MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
810 SECURITY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
811 EMERGENCY MGMT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
850 PURCHASING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
855 CENTRAL SUPPLY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
870 DIETARY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
871 DIETICIANS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
900 ADMINISTRATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
901 COMM SVC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
902 MED STAFF SVC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
903 MHSC FOUNDATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
904 VOLUNTEER SRV -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
905 NURSING ADMIN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
907 PHYSICIAN RECRUIT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
910 INFORMATION SYSTEMS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
920 HUMAN RESOURCES -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
930 FISCAL SERVICES -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
940 BUSINESS OFFICE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
941 ADMITTING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
942 COMMUNICATION -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
943 CENTRAL SCHEDULING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
948 NEW ORTHO -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
949 DENKER -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
950 OLIVER -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
952 NEW PULMONOLOGIST -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
953 STEWART -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
954 WHEELER -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
956 KATTAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
957 STARLA LETTE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
958 VERONESE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
959 GREWAL -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
960 SANDERS PA -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
961 DANSIE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
962 BOWERS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
963 LONG -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
964 JAKE JOHNSON -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
966 OCC MED -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
967 PA PALINEK -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
969 PAWAR -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
970 CROFTS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
971 WAMSUTTER CLINIC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
972 FARSON CLINIC -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
973 LAURIDSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
974 SMG ADMIN/BILLING -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
978 HOSPITALIST -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
980 JENSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
981 CROFT -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
982 CHRISTENSEN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
988 CURRY -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
990 NEW PEDIATRICIAN -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         
991 JAMIAS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
992 ASPER -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
993 LIU -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
994 DUCK -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
996 SARETTE -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         
997 OUTSIDE CLINICS -              -              -              -               -                  -                     -                         -                         

TOTAL CONTRACT HOURS 267.2          185.5          191.4          5.9              -                

TOTAL CONTRACT FTEs 2.3 3.3              2.3              2.4              0.1               0.1              -                5.1                    2.8                    

CONTRACT  % WORKED HOURS 0.8% 0.6% 0.6% 0.1% 0.0%

Page 112 of 173



HOSPITAL CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 18.34% 17.48% 18.37%
Blue Cross 20.24% 20.65% 23.66%
Medicaid 8.29% 8.14% 9.99%
Medicare 43.00% 42.14% 36.77%
Self Pay  7.11% 8.79% 9.42%
Other 3.02% 2.80% 1.79%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 28.24% 27.28% 28.94%
Blue Cross 31.62% 28.28% 30.49%
Medicaid 10.69% 13.08% 14.70%
Medicare 24.70% 25.57% 19.07%
Self Pay  4.53% 5.28% 6.18%
Other 0.22% 0.51% 0.62%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

ORTHO CLINIC CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 43.53% 34.84% 39.50%
Blue Cross 23.68% 22.97% 27.91%
Medicaid 5.33% 4.32% 6.32%
Medicare 23.86% 33.61% 23.02%
Self Pay  2.91% 3.89% 2.71%
Other 0.69% 0.38% 0.54%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

COMBINED CURRENT YEAR TO DATE PRIOR YEAR
Commercial/Work Comp 19.48% 18.61% 19.86%
Blue Cross 21.31% 21.38% 24.39%
Medicaid 8.48% 8.54% 10.34%
Medicare 41.16% 40.50% 34.80%
Self Pay  6.84% 8.41% 8.96%
Other 2.75% 2.56% 1.65%

TOTAL 100% 100% 100%

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

Five months ending November 30, 2018
PAYOR MIX DATA

Page 113 of 173



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
DAYS IN A/R

11/30/18

HOSPITAL AR DAYS
Nov-17 42
Dec-17 42
Jan-18 45
Feb-18 47
Mar-18 48
Apr-18 51
May-18 47
Jun-18 48
Jul-18 54
Aug-18 58
Sep-18 49
Oct-18 53
Nov-18 52

CLINIC AR DAYS
Nov-17 56
Dec-17 54
Jan-18 57
Feb-18 62
Mar-18 58
Apr-18 57
May-18 59
Jun-18 55
Jul-18 58
Aug-18 66
Sep-18 62
Oct-18 60
Nov-18 59

ORTHO AR DAYS
Nov-17 35
Dec-17 41
Jan-18 44
Feb-18 40
Mar-18 63
Apr-18 67
May-18 53
Jun-18 38
Jul-18 55
Aug-18 66
Sep-18 47
Oct-18 58
Nov-18 69

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18 Sep-18 Nov-18

56 54 57 
62 

58 57 59 
55 

58 
66 

62 60 59 

CLINIC AR DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18 Sep-18 Nov-18

35 
41 

44 
40 

63 
67 

53 

38 

55 

66 

47 

58 

69 

ORTHO A R DAYS

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Nov-17 Jan-18 Mar-18 May-18 Jul-18 Sep-18 Nov-18

42 42 
45 47 48 

51 
47 48 

54 
58 

49 
53 52 

HOSPITAL AR DAYS

Page 114 of 173



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
Days of Cash on Hand

11/30/2018

154.07

135.26

106.86
91.17

110.8 110.1

FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 YTD 2019

DAYS OF CASH ON HAND

161,980 

198,019 
228,512 226,999 224,923 219,686 

200,999 202,528 

240,227 245,026 
234,282 

235,384 

FY2014 FY2015 FY2016 FY2017 FY2018 YTD 2019

DAILY CASH COLLECTIONS/DAILY CASH EXPENSE

DAILY COLLECTIONS DAILY CASH EXPENSE

Page 115 of 173



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Legal Fees By Fiscal Year

FY 2019
BARY J WALKER $3,000.00
DRAY, DYEKMAN, REED & HEALEY PC $12,055.16
SETTLEMENTS $50,000.00
PHILLIPS LAW, LLC $47,929.04
KING & SPALDING, LLP $7,094.09

Total FYTD 2019 $120,078.29

Page 116 of 173



Page 117 of 173



Page 118 of 173



Page 119 of 173



Page 120 of 173



Page 121 of 173



Page 122 of 173



Page 123 of 173



Page 124 of 173



Page 125 of 173



Page 126 of 173



Page 127 of 173



Page 128 of 173



Page 129 of 173



Page 130 of 173



Page 131 of 173



Page 132 of 173



Page 133 of 173



Page 134 of 173



Page 135 of 173



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY
OPEN BID INVESTMENT SUMMARY REPORT

11/30/18

INTEREST
ACCOUNT FINANCIAL INST RATE 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 0.300% 8,710,751 5,295,564 4,330,411 4,362,377 4,894,328 2,407,342
RESERVE BANK OF WEST 0.300% 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000 1,300,000
GENERAL BANK OF WEST 1.000% 2,460,272 2,983,016 2,964,992 2,474,121 0
CAPITAL DEVELOPMENT KEYBANK & MBS 2.070% 13,001,178 12,299,119 9,231,852 8,253,433 8,303,935 12,789,514
E. BOICE WYOSTAR 2.125% 39 39 39 40 40 40
LIFELINE WYOSTAR 2.125% 104,294 104,607 104,934 105,575 106,849 107,675
TOTAL 23,116,262 21,459,601 17,950,252 16,986,416 17,079,273 16,604,571

INFORMATION:

CURRENT INVESTMENT BALANCE: 16,604,571.25$  

GENERAL FUND BALANCE AS OF 11/30/18 2,769,847           
REPRESENTING DAYS OF CASH ON HAND 12.59                  

RECOMMENDATION:

MAINTAIN FUNDS IN CURRENT INVESTMENTS DUE TO LIQUIDITY OF FUNDS.

23,116,262
21,459,601

17,950,252
16,986,416 17,079,273 16,604,571

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

6/30/2014 6/30/2015 6/30/2016 6/30/2017 6/30/2018 6/30/2019

Page 136 of 173



Vouchers Submitted by MHSC at agreed discounted rate

July 2018 $25,263.47
August 2018 $19,080.15
September 2018 $16,565.76
October 2018 $22,530.05
November 2018 $17,397.84

County Requested Total Vouchers Submitted $100,837.27

Total Vouchers Submitted FY 2019 $100,837.27

Less:  Total Approved by County and Received by MHSC FY 2019 $60,909.38

Total Vouchers Pending Approval by County $39,927.89

FY19 Title 25 Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $338,580.00

Funds Received From Sweetwater County $60,909.38

 FY19 Title 25 Fund Budget Remaining $277,670.62

Total Budgeted Vouchers Pending Submittal to County $0.00

FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget from Sweetwater County $1,063,752.00

County Maintenance FY19 - July $13,120.28
County Maintenance FY19 - August $48,851.71
County Maintenance FY19 - September $21,866.14
County Maintenance FY19 - October $24,844.65
County Maintenance FY19 - November $23,729.06

$132,411.84

 FY18 Maintenance Fund Budget Remaining $931,340.16

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
County Voucher Summary

as of month ending November 30, 2018

Page 137 of 173



Finance and Audit Committee 

IT report 

December 2018 

Rich Tyler 

1. Continuing work on auditing software implementation.  Currently looking at a go-live in 

March 2019. 

2. Continuing working with the Cancer Center team and Pharmacy team to implement the 

new Looking Glass software.  Also working to implement Varian Aria for the medical 

oncology department.  Possible go-live in Jan 2019. 

3. Continuing to work with the state of Wyoming HIE (Health Information Exchange).  We 

are still testing out interfaces, and working on getting the correct formatting of the data. 

4. Continuing to work on migrating mirth interface engine software from older appliances 

to new virtual environment. 

5. Continuing work on the telehealth project. 

6. Planning to upgrade to the latest version of Quadramed QCPR and Quadramed Affinity 

in our production environment.  (Planning to be done the week of Dec 12/17/18) 

7. Completed migration of Aria cancer center software to virtual environment. 

8. Planning migration of Nuance document management software to virtual environment. 

9. Upgraded the hospital Barracuda spam filter appliance. 

10. Completed upgrade of our internet connection from 100Mbps to 1000Mbps. 

11. Installed and replaced telehealth robots for Tele-burn, Tele-stroke, and Tele-ICU. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 138 of 173



 

 

IT News and Info: 

a. Towards the end of November, a North Carolina healthcare system was 

contacted by its billing company, AccuDoc solutions and was told that an 

unauthorized third party had gained access to their databases in September 

2018.  Data from 2.65 million patients was potentially exposed in this breach. 

b. Pagosa Springs medical center in Colorado has agreed to pay $111,400 to the 

Health and Human Services Office for civil rights and adopt a corrective action 

plan to settle allegations that it failed to terminate a former employee’s access 

to protected health information held online.  The civil rights office determined 

that as a result of the continuation of employee access, that the information of 

557 patients was viewable by the former employee.  Also the hospital disclosed 

patient data to the scheduling vendor without having a Business Associate 

Agreement in place. 

 

Page 139 of 173



Page 140 of 173



Page 141 of 173



Page 142 of 173



Report to the Board 
From Chairman of Building and Grounds Committee 

December meeting 2018 
 
Maintenance Metrics 
October 22 / 199 / 221 age less than 30 days / age over 30 days / total work orders 
November 23 / 201 / 224 
December     (not available at time of meeting) 
 
Facilities gave full support to the Joint Commission survey effort which consumed much of the recent 
effort.  It was noted that the engineering specialist did not tour with the group.  The Joint Commission 
engineering specialist will be on site January 4th to complete that portion of the inspection.  
 
Facilities Director provided a slide show update of current projects. 

 A member of the Facilities crew came up with a means of repairing and protecting corners and 
portions of wall that are subject to wear and impact.  The fix involves installing what would best 
be described as a wear pad.  Several examples were shown.  The work is attractive and an 
excellent display of craftsmanship.  This solution will reduce the cost of wall repairs. 

 A challenge of this type also exists where ceramics are involved but this is in some areas 
where the highlighted repair effort may not be applied – future funding will be required for the 
ceramic repair solution. 

 
The LED lighting program was discussed. 

 A number of quotations and analysis were reviewed for a number of locations.  Financial 
assistance is available from Pacific Power for conversion to LED lighting.  Payout periods vary 
by application but eventual cost saving in power will be realized by these conversions.  It is 
probable that some of these may be acted upon as funds become available. 

 
Fall protection for employees working on the roof of the hospital was discussed. 

 The building roofs are flat and have only a very low curb at the edge.  OSHA requires fall 
protection for any one working on the surface.  This is a compliance requirement and a 
necessity. 

 The Facilities Director has been searching for solutions to this problem.  He presented a 
number of quotations for various options that have been researched.  It is anticipated that 
action will be taken in the near future. 

 
The recent grant of funds for the Central Plant Upgrade was discussed. 

 Scope creep control was discussed.  Some issues have already come up.  An effort will have 
to be made to keep costs sorted out.  Expect some discussion of this when the engineering 
contract for the upgrade comes to a vote at the Board meeting. 
 

Retaining wall repair at rear of the building. 

 The design is complete.  Advertisement soliciting construction bids will occur soon with focus 
on a spring start.  The project must be completed by July 1st to meet the requirements of the 
funding source. 

 
 
 

Page 143 of 173



Page 144 of 173



Page 145 of 173



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Board
of Trustees

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting

Wednesday - December 19, 2018

2:30 PM

Medical Office Building Conference Room

Page 146 of 173



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

Building & Grounds Committee 

M.O.B. Conference Room 

2:30 PM 

 

Wednesday – December 19, 2018 

 

 

 

Board Committee Members  Staff Committee Members 

Ed Tardoni    Irene Richardson 

Barbara Sowada   Jim Horan 

     Tami Love 

      

 

Guests 

Gerry Johnson – Facilities 

Stevie Nosich – Facilities 

Leslie Taylor - Clinic 

John Kolb – Board of Sweetwater County Commissioners 

  

 

Agenda 

 

1. Approve November 20, 2018 Minutes     

2. Metrics Report 

3. Project(s) Review  

A. Old Business 

B. New Business      

4. Meeting Schedule         

 

Page 2 of 4Page 147 of 173



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Building & Grounds Committee Meeting 

November 20, 2018 

3:30 PM 

 

 

Trustee Committee Members Present: Mr. Ed Tardoni 

      Dr. Barbara Sowada 

 

Staff Committee Members Present:  Mr. Jim Horan 

      Ms. Irene Richardson 

Ms. Tami Love 

             

Guests:  Ms. Stevie Nosich 

Ms. Leslie Taylor 

Mr. Gerry Johnson 

 

  

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Tardoni called the meeting to order. He noted a correction of metrics information he recently 

reported to the Board. The correct information is 198 for work orders greater than 30 days and 221 

total.  

 

Minutes 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the October 16, 2018, meeting as presented was made by 

Ms. Richardson; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. 

 

Metrics Report 

 

Open Work Orders:  224 

Greater Than 30 Days: 201 

Overtime for Month: Yes – Expects a bit more due to moving furniture and snow removal 

Over Budget: Yes – Expects will be slightly over due to some work being done 

upstairs 

 

Mr. Horan said a lot of the work orders go back a number of years. He said some of those we can 

probably close. Mr. Johnston is going to work with Ms. Nosich to clear those up. Mr. Horan said 

clearing up past work orders will help get a more accurate number. 

 

Old Business 

 

Mr. Horan reported we plan to start the laundry upgrade after January 1. He said The Joint 

Commission is coming on-site December 17 and that is the priority. He said he has been pushing 

back some project work to prepare for the visit. Mr. Tardoni led a discussion of temperature issues 

in the laundry area. 

Page 3 of 4Page 148 of 173



 

 

Minutes of the November 20, 2018 Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

 

 

Mr. Horan reported the return air ducting in the medical office building has been really good, much 

faster, and much cleaner. He said he is very pleased with A Pleasant construction. The last phase 

is being finished now. 

 

Mr. Horan reported ST&B Engineering has given price quotes for the chillers. We are getting 

closer on the engineering work. Ms. Richardson distributed information and said we found out 

earlier in the day the County recognizes this can be considered for reimbursement by the County 

which would free up $269K in the hospital budget. Ms. Love said we will take the request to the 

Finance and Audit Committee the following week and then to the full Board in December.  

 

Mr. Horan reviewed pictures in a presentation and reviewed the life safety audit. Dr. Sowada said 

that, from a quality perspective, she is so grateful Mr. Horan brought in a consultant to help address 

issues. Mr. Tardoni asked if there are any developments in the power problem regarding a CT 

cable. Mr. Horan said it has been resolved. Mr. Tardoni said he would appreciate Mr. Horan 

including the resolution in his report the following month.  

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Horan said we will probably be putting in LED parking lighting in the spring. 

 

Next Meeting 

 

The next meeting is scheduled December 19 at 3:30 PM.  
 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson. 

Page 4 of 4Page 149 of 173



Joint Conference Committee Meeting 

December 18, 2018 

Present:  

Dr. David Dansie 

Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Irene Richardson, CEO 

Richard Mathey 

Ed Tardoni 

Kerry Downs 

 

The meeting was called to order at 12:34 pm. 

The last meeting was held on 11/3/2017.  The items discussed then were reception & scheduling, portal 

and communication, and discussion concerning the mission statement. 

Bylaws: 

Dr. Dansie stated that he called a meeting of the Joint Conference Committee to discuss the template of 

the new medical staff bylaws.  He explained that he wanted to make sure the medical staff bylaws were 

consistent with the board’s bylaws.  He also said that he wanted the board to review them before 

presenting them to the medical staff for approval. 

Dr. Dansie said that the goal in revising these bylaws is to have consistent language throughout, close 

loopholes that have caused problems in the past, to simplify the language, and to reduce the number of 

required meetings and committees. He stated that MEC has reviewed and approved the bylaws with the 

note that non-substantive changes may be made to formatting, grammar, etc. These changes can be made 

prior to the vote of the full medical staff.  

Mr. Mathey asked that the committee go through the bylaws page by page and a redline markup version 

be provided to the committee. 

The committee reviewed the bylaws, through page eight, and suggested several grammatical changes. 

They also discussed Article IV, Section 2D – Board Certification Waiver.  It was decided that this section 

should be sent back to MEC for further evaluation. 

Article IV, Section 4 – Principles of Medical Ethics will also be sent to MEC for further discussion. 

Meeting Attendance: 

Dr. Jamias brought up the subject of meeting attendance.  The committee talked about different 

approaches to improving physician turnout at meetings.  They decided that the following methods might 

help to improve attendance: 

1. Include a requirement for meeting attendance in physician contracts. 

2. Use meeting attendance as leverage in contract re-negotiations. 

3. Request committee chairs to give quarterly reports to the Board of Trustees. 

 

 

Page 150 of 173



 

Next Meeting: 

Richard Mathey will be the chair of the Joint Conference Committee, beginning in January 2019.  As the 

new President of the Medical Staff, Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen will join the committee. Mr. Mathey asked 

Dr. Jamias to stay as a member of the committee.  He also invited Dr. Dansie to attend the next meeting 

as an advisor without vote. 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:00 pm. 

Page 151 of 173



Page 152 of 173



Page 153 of 173



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

Genetic Counseling 

Delineation of Privileges 

 

Name: _______________________________________________________________________ 

 

 Initial Appointment  Reappointment 

 

To be eligible for core privileges in Genetic Counseling, the applicant must meet the following qualifications: 

 

EDUCATION: Master’s degree from a genetic counseling training program accredited by the American Board 

of Genetic Counseling (ABGC) or equivalent program or a doctoral degree from a medical genetics training 

program accredited by the American Board of Medical Genetics (ABMG). 

 

BOARD CERTIFICATION: Board certified as a genetic counselor by the ABGC or as a medical geneticist by 

the ABMG. In the absence of board certification, applicant must have completed the required education and 

must be qualified to pursue and receive board certification (board eligible). Board certification must be obtained 

within seven years from completion of training. 

 

LICENSURE:  Licensed by the state of Utah to practice as a genetic counselor. (If the state of Wyoming begins 

licensing genetic counselors, then a Wyoming license will be required.) 

 

EXPERIENCE: completion of above training requirements listed above within the past four (4) years or at least 

one-half time (20 hours per week) clinical practice of genetic counseling during at least three of the past five 

years. 

 

In order to maintain a clinical partnership of the highest standards between Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater 

County (MHSC) and the University of Utah/Huntsman Cancer Institute (U of U/HCI), the following statements 

of competency are set forth for clinicians engaged in genetic counseling at MHSC: 

1. Applicant understands that the credentialing completed and privileges approved by University of Utah 

do not extend to memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County and a separate credentials and privileging 

application are required for privileges at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County. 

2. All HCI clinicians who will be providing services at MHSC will meet and maintain MHSC stated 

competencies. 

Supervision: 

These persons may practice independent of supervision but all services performed for a specific patient shall be 

done so at the request of the attending physician and in accordance with the Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations, and Policies and Procedures. 

 

Genetic Counselors may not admit patients to the hospital, order medications, or discharge patients from the 

hospital.   

 

Acknowledgement of Limitations:  These persons recognize and acknowledge that, ultimately, final patient 

care decisions are made by the attending physician.  It is further recognized and acknowledged by these persons 

that they have been requested to act only in the capacity of a consultant.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 154 of 173



 

 

Note:  The following criteria for delineation of clinical privileges will uniformly apply to all applicants at initial 

appointment and reappointment of privileges. 

 
Date   Date Approved 

Requested  by Hospital Board 

   Of Trustees 

 

___________  ____________ GENETIC COUNSELING CORE PRIVILEGES 

 

 Obtain and evaluate individual, family, and medical histories to determine 

genetic risk for genetic/medical conditions and diseases in a patient and their 

family members. 

 Discuss the features, natural history, means of diagnosis, genetic and 

environmental factors, and management of risk for genetic/medical 

conditions and diseases. 

 Identify and explain options for genetic tests or diagnostic studies and 

coordinate tests and studies as appropriate for genetic assessment. 

 Integrate genetic test results and other diagnostic studies with personal and 

family medical history to assess and communicate risk factors for 

genetic/medical conditions and diseases. 

 Explain the clinical implications of genetic tests and other diagnostic studies 

and their results. 

 Evaluate the patient’s or family’s responses to the condition or risk of 

recurrence and provide client-centered counseling and guidance. 

 Provide written documentation of medical/genetic information and 

counseling provided. 

 

 

      SPECIAL PRIVILEGES  

 
Date   Date Approved 

Requested  by Hospital Board 

   Of Trustees       
If qualified, may obtain samples for tests by: 

 

___________  ____________ Blood draw (phlebotomy training required) 

 

___________  ____________ Buccal swab 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 155 of 173



If desired, additional privileges may be requested. Each individual requesting noncore privileges must meet the 

specific threshold criteria governing the exercise of the privilege requested including training, required previous 

experience, and for maintenance of clinical competence. 

 
Date   Date Approved 

Requested  by Hospital Board Additional Privileges Requested: 
   Of Trustees 

 

___________  ____________  _____________________________________________________ 

 

___________  ____________  _____________________________________________________ 

 

 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRACTITIONER: 

I have requested only those clinical services/functions for which by education, training, current experience, and 

demonstrated performance I am qualified to perform and for which I wish to exercise at Memorial Hospital of 

Sweetwater County, and I understand that: 

In exercising any clinical services/functions granted and in carrying out the responsibilities assigned to me, I am 

constrained by hospital and medical staff policies and rules applicable generally and any applicable to the 

particular situation. 

Signed  Date  

ENDORSEMENT OF PHYSICIAN SPONSOR(S): 

I have reviewed the clinical privileges requested by the named applicant, and I believe that this individual is 

qualified by licensure and training to provide patient care as requested.  I recommend appointment for this 

individual to the Allied Health Professional (AHP) staff and I am willing to sponsor this applicant.  

 

I agree to notify the hospital of any changes in this agreement. 

 

 

Signed  Date  
 

Printed Name of Physician:________________________________________________________ 
 
R 12/2018 

Page 156 of 173



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
 

DELINEATION OF  

PODIATRIC SURGICAL PRIVILEGES 

 
Name:__________________________________________________________________ 

 
Board Certification, or the active pursuit of board certification, in the specialty of  Podiatry by the American 

Board of Podiatric Surgery or the equivalent certifying body (as determined by the Credentials Committee) is 

required.   

 

In the absence of board certification, applicant must have completed an approved podiatric residency, and must 

be qualified to pursue and receive board certification (board eligible). Board certification must be obtained 

within seven years from completion of residency. 

 

May co-admit with an M.D. or D.O. that has admitting privileges at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

and render podiatric medical, consultative services and surgical treatment for the following procedures: 

 

PART I.   PRIVILEGES – Require Base Criteria Only 

 
Procedures (Limited to the Forefoot and Midfoot) 

 

Date  Date Approved 

Requested by Hospital Board 

  Of Trustees 

 

________ ________ Co-treatment with physician of skin, bone, and joint infections of the foot. 

 

________ ________ Incision and Drainage:  abscess, hematoma, post-operative wound infection,  

infected bursa. 

 

________ ________ Puncture aspiration:  abscess, hematoma, bulla, cyst 

 

________ ________ Paring/curettement benign hyperkeratotic or verrucous skin lesions with or  

without cauterization 

 

________ ________ Skin biopsy, skin/subcutaneous tissue 

 

________ ________ Excision of uncomplicated benign/malignant, skin/subcutaneous lesions 

 

________ ________ Debridement:  toenails, superficial or subcutaneous tissue ulcer 

 

________ ________ Avulsion of toenails, partial or complete, with or without matricectomy,  

partial or complete, with or without repair of nail bed 

 

________ ________ Wedge excision of skin of nail fold 

 

________ ________ Simple repair or layered closure of foot wounds 

 

________ ________ Cauterization superficial granulation tissue 

 

________ ________ Incision and removal foreign body, subcutaneous tissues, muscle or tendon  

sheath 

 

Page 157 of 173



Date  Date Approved 

Requested by Hospital Board 

  Of Trustees 

 

________ ________ Tenotomy, digital, subcutaneous or open, extensor or flexor; lengthening,  

repair or suture of tendon 

 

________ ________ Excision intermetatarsal neuroma 

 

________ ________ Excision lesion of tendon/fibrous sheath or capsule (cyst or ganglion), forefoot,  

Toes 

 

________ ________ Capsulotomy for contracture; metatarsopholangeal or interphalangeal joint 

 

________ ________ Arthroplasty, digital 

 

________ ________ Open/closed treatment digital fractures with use of internal fixation 

 

________ ________ Ostectomy; digital, metatarsal head  

 

________ ________ Use of intra-operative radiographs and C-Arm assisted surgical fluoroscopy  

(after appropriate in servicing by Radiologist) 

 

________ ________ Local anesthesia of the foot and ankle for forefoot procedures, fracture  

reduction/dislocation 

 

________ ________ Application/windowing/removal of:  short leg walking cast; clubfoot; short leg  

splint; strapping (ankle, foot, toes) & Unna Boot 

 

________ ________ Use of internal fixation (K-wires, absorbable pins) 

 

________ ________ Osteotomy and osteectomy of the midfoot (includes cuneiforms, navicular and  

    cuboid bones) excluding calcaneus and talus 

 

________ ________ Midfoot arthrodesis procedures (includes cuneiforms, navicular and cuboid  

    bones) excluding calcaneus and talus 

 

 

PART II.   PRIVILEGES – Require Base Criteria Plus Additional Specified Criteria 

 

Date  Date Approved 

Requested by Hospital Board 

  Of Trustees 

 

________ ________ Arthrotomy with exploration, drainage or removal of loose or foreign  

body or for synovial biopsy, metatarsophalangeal or interphalangeal joint 

 

________ ________ Excision/curettage of bone cyst or benign tumor, phalanges, metatarsals 

 

________ ________ Hallux valgus (bunion) correction:  with or without sesamoidectomy;  

Keller, McBride type; with metatarsal osteotomy; by phalanx osteotomy 

 

________ ________ Excision accessory ossicles, bone cyst or benign tumor, forefoot 

 

 

________ ________ Osteotomy, metatarsal or toe, base or shaft, with or without lengthening for  

Page 158 of 173



shortening or angular correction 

 

________ ________ Soft tissue reconstruction, angular deformity of toe (i.e. overlapping second,  

fifth toe, curly toes) 

 

________ ________ Sesamoidectomy 

 

________ ________ Open/closed treatment metatarsal fractures with or without use of internal  

fixation 

 

________ ________ Ostectomy hypertrophied tarsal bone (i.e. 1st metatarsal – 1st cuneiform  

exostosis) 

 

________ ________ Forefoot tenodesis with or without transfer 

 

________ ________ Arthrodesis, digital 

 

________ ________ Use of internal fixation (screws, staples, pins) 

 

________ ________ Soft tissue reconstruction, angular deformity of toe (i.e. overlapping second, 

    fifth toe, curly toes) 

 

________ ________ Excision accessory ossicles, bone cyst or benign tumor, forefoot 

 

 

OTHER: 

 

Date  Date Approved 

Requested by Hospital Board 

  Of Trustees 

 

________ ________  

 

________ ________  

 

________ ________   
 

________ ________  

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________________________________  ___________________ 

Signature        Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

R 12/2018 

Page 159 of 173



Page 160 of 173



Page 161 of 173



Page 162 of 173



Page 163 of 173



Page 164 of 173



Page 165 of 173



Page 166 of 173



Page 167 of 173



Page 168 of 173



Page 169 of 173



Page 170 of 173



Page 171 of 173



Page 172 of 173



Page 173 of 173


	Meeting Book
	meeting book - monday - january 7, 2019 board of trustees regular meeting.pdf


